Open Agenda

Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee
Monday 7 February 2022
7.00 pm
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH
Membership

Reserves

Councillor James McAsh (Chair)
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Michael Situ

Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Adele Morris

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you
may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building access,
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site:
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Virginia Wynn-Jones on 020 7525 7055 or email: virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 28 January 2022

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
Monday 7 February 2022
7.00 pm
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business
Item No.

Title

Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS
The chair would like to remind members that prior to the meeting
they have the opportunity to inform officers of particular areas of
interest relating to reports on the agenda, in order for officers to
undertake preparatory work to address matters that may arise during
debate.
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS
A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of
the committee.

3.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT
In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda
within five clear days of the meeting.

4.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

5.

MINUTES
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the open section of the
meeting held on 20 September 2021.

1-3

Item No.

6.

Title

Page No.

GOVERNANCE CONVERSATION: ELEANOR KELLY
The Chief Executive, Eleanor Kelly, to discuss governance arrangements

7.

AUDIT PLANS (INCLUDING PENSION FUND)

8.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND STRATEGY FOR INTERNAL AUDIT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

4 - 58

To follow
9.

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE 2021-22

59 - 71

10.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC: UPDATE FEBRUARY 2022

72 - 76

11.

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUDITOR

77 - 79

12.

MEMBER INDUCTION PROGRAMME MAY 2022
To follow

13.

REVIEW OF THE COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER THE CODE OF
CONDUCT

80 - 85

14.

REPORT ON THE OPERATIONAL USE OF THE REGULATION OF
INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000

86 - 93

15.

ANNUAL REPORT ON THE WORK AND PERFORMANCE OF THE
AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE IN 2021-22

94 - 103

16.

CONFIRMATION OF NON-VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF THE
CIVIC AWARDS SUB-COMMITTEE FOR 2021-22
Verbal update

17.

ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME FOR FOLLOWING YEAR (2022-23)
To follow
ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT

Item No.

Title

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”
PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

Date: 28 January 2022

Page No.

1

Agenda Item 5

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
held on Monday 20 September 2021 at 6.30 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A
- 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

1.

PRESENT:

Councillor James McAsh (Chair)
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Michael Situ

OTHER MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Councillor Graham Neale

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Councillor Graham Neale was unable to be present in person, but attended via Zoom.

2.

CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS
The members present were confirmed as the voting members.

3.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
Item 10: Statement of accounts: Final was accepted by the chair as late and urgent.

4.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
There were none.

5.

MINUTES
The minutes of the audit, governance and standards committee of 19 July 2021 were
agreed as a correct record.
1
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Monday 20 September 2021

2

6.

GOVERNANCE CONVERSATION: DAVID QUIRKE-THORNTON
This item was postponed to a future meeting.

7.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND ANTI-FRAUD UPDATE SEPTEMBER 2021
RESOLVED:

1.

8.

That the audit, governance and standards committee noted the report, as attached at
Appendix A of the report.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC: UPDATE SEPTEMBER 2021
RESOLVED:
1.

9.

That the audit, governance and standards committee note the impact of the Covid19 pandemic on spending and income and the government grants to support the
council’s financial losses in 2021-22.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
RESOLVED:

1.

10.

That the audit, governance and standards committee approved the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) 2020-21 as attached at Appendix 1 of the
report.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS: FINAL

This decision included item 11: Audit findings report (ISA 260) – including pension
fund.
RESOLVED:
1.

That the audit, governance and standards committee:
a) considered the matters raised in Grant Thornton’s audit findings report for
2020-21 (appendix A of the report) before approval of the council’s main
accounts
b) noted the adjustments to the main accounts as set out in page 29 of the
audit findings report (appendix A of the report)
c) approved the council’s letter of representation (page 38 of appendix A of the
report)
2
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Monday 20 September 2021

3

d) considered the matters raised in the Pension Fund audit findings report
2020-21 (appendix B of the report) prior to approval of the Pension Fund
accounts
e) noted the adjustments to the Pension Fund accounts as set out in page 17
of the audit findings report
f) approved the Pension Fund letter of representation (page 23 of appendix B
of the report)
g) approved the Statement of Accounts 2020-21 (appendix C), subject to any
final changes required by the conclusion of the audit, being delegated to the
strategic director of finance and governance in consultation with the chair of
audit, governance and standards committee.
11.

AUDIT FINDINGS REPORTS (ISA 260) - INCLUDING PENSION FUND
This decision was taken as part of item 10: Statement of accounts: Final.
Meeting ended at 8.00 pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

3
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee - Monday 20 September 2021

4

Agenda Item 7
Item No.
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
7 February 2022

Meeting Name:
Audit, governance and
standards committee

Report title:

Internal audit and anti-fraud progress report
February 2022

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the audit, governance and standards committee note the report, as
attached at Appendix A.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
2.

This report informs the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee of
progress against completion of the 2020-21 and 2021-22 internal audit plans.

Policy implications
3.

This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.

Community impact statement
4.

This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a
significant impact on any particular community or group.

Resource implications
5.

If there are direct resource implications in this report, such as the payment of
fees, these will be met from existing budget provision.

Consultation
6.

There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
7.

None required.

5

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
None

Held At

Contact

APPENDICES
No.
Appendix A

Title
Internal audit and anti-fraud progress report

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer

Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and
Governance
Report Author Angela Mason-Bell, Greg Rubin, BDO
Version Final
Dated 28 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Governance
No
N/A
Strategic
Director
of
No
N/A
Finance and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
28 January 2022

6

INTERNAL AUDIT AND ANTI-FRAUD
PROGRESS REPORT
London Borough of Southwark
For presentation to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
7 February 2022
10 February 2020

7

CONTENTS
Page

1. Summary of internal audit work

3

2. Anti-fraud update

5

3. Summary of work in progress

8

4. Executive summaries of reports finalised since the last meeting

13

5. Summary of recommendations status

32

Appendix 1: Internal audit definitions

45

Appendix 2: Local Government Sector Update

46

2

8

1. SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK
Purpose of report
This report informs the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee of progress against
completion of the 2020-21 and 2021-22 internal audit plans. It summarises the work we
have undertaken, together with our assessment of the systems reviewed and the
recommendations we have raised. Our work complies with Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.
Internal audit methodology
We have agreed terms of reference for each piece of work with the risk owner, identifying
the headline and sub-risks, which have been covered as part of the assignment. This
approach is designed to enable us to give assurance on the risk management and internal
control processes in place to mitigate the risks identified. Our reporting methodology is
based on four assurance levels in respect of our overall conclusions as to the design and
operational effectiveness of controls within the system reviewed - substantial, moderate,
limited or no assurance. The four assurance levels are designed to ensure that the opinion
given does not gravitate to a "satisfactory" or middle band grading. Under any system, we
are required to make a judgement when making our overall assessment. The definitions
for our assurance levels are set out in appendix 1 to this report.
Internal audit plans 2020-21 and 2021-22
All audit reports relating to the 2020-21 plan have now been finalised.
The current status of audits within the 2021-22 is outlined within section 3 of this report.
Where reports have been finalised, the executive summaries are included in section 4 of
this report.
Internal audit programme for schools 2021-22
We have agreed a work programme with the Director of Education that will meet the
assurance needs of the Council, whilst recognising that schools have faced significant
pressure during the year and have remained closed for significant periods of time. We
completed the first set of individual school audits during the period April to July 2021. No
further school audits have been carried out at the request of the Director of Education, due
to the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Follow up
As part of finalising each audit report, we agree with management the actions that will be
taken in response to each finding and recommendation. Within their response,
management include the date by which the actions will be completed. Internal audit
routinely follows up all high and medium recommendations made ahead of each Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee. A full schedule of recommendations falling due in
the period is issued to each Departmental Management Team.
The recommendation implementation rate has remained unchanged at 87% since our last
progress report (reported in November 2021). and timely updates and provision of
evidence by the required deadlines has continued. There remain some audits where the
required updates and / or evidence has not been provided, therefore, the actual
implementation rate may be higher than 87%.

3

9

Other internal audit work
We have completed a reasonable assurance engagement in connection with the EU project
URBACT Thriving Streets by performing First Level Control (FLC) claims verification for the
period 1 April 2021 to 7 August 2022. Our report was an independent assurance conclusion
as to whether the subject matter is in agreement with the grant offer letter in all material
respects with eligibility criteria for the costs taken into consideration. A separate letter of
engagement has been agreed with the Council for this work. Phases 1 and 2 covering
expenditure from 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021 was audited in November 2021. Phase
3 expenditure for the period 1 April 2022 to 7 August 2022 will be audited in August 2022.

4

10

2. ANTI-FRAUD UPDATE
BDO has been engaged to provide management support and strategic advice to the antifraud team at the Council. The lead for this work is Nick Baker (FCCA, ACFS), an
accredited counter fraud senior manager and forensic accountant within BDO forensic
services.
Summary of investigations 2021-22 to date
2021-22

Corporate AntiFraud
Open Closed

C/f
April 2021

18
15

May

Housing Waiting
List
Open
Closed

15

0
2

12

9

June

15

July

Right to Buy
Open

2

9
3

8

5

9

2

6

12

August

7

September

Closed

COVID-19
Referrals
Open
Closed

5

18
1

0

3

3

3

0

3

1

1

1

0

7

8

2

2

0

0

6

4

4

3

3

1

8

12*

9*

5

4

6

1

8

0

October

6

8*

4

3

5

5

8

0

November

5

10*

3

4

4

9

0

1

December

11

7*

3

3

6

6

0

0

Total

107

85

38

36

42

35

40

9

The figures represent investigations from 1 April 2021 to 31 October 2021.
•

Please note these figures have been changed from previous reporting following a review
of all cases and an error occurred in the date field which resulted in older cases being
attributed to the current year. There was no impact to the actual number of
investigations reported in the current year.

Reactive Anti-Fraud investigations
There are currently 17 active Corporate Anti-fraud Team investigations. These can briefly
be summarised as follows:
investigations.
•

Children & Adult Services

5 cases

•

Environment & Leisure

1 case

•

Housing & Modernisation

4 cases

•

Finance & Governance

6 cases

•

CEO

1 case

•

COVID-19
o

Business Grants-

o

Community Grants-

28 cases
2 cases (linked to 9 different applications)

5

11

Two cases relate to former Council employees and three cases relate to a current Council
employee. No further information in respect of these investigations can be given at this
time.
Following a direction from BEIS concerning recovery of grant payments we determined
with Exchequer Services which cases should be referred to BEIS, which released resources
so the Anti-Fraud Team could focus on actual fraud cases.
Following the efforts to engage with 24 grant recipients to discuss the repayment of the
grants. We received seven responses who are now making efforts to repay the grants
either fully or partially. Nine recipients provided no response, and six recipients are
disputing the need to pay. Any recipients who have not replied or indicated they are
disputing the repayment will be referred to BEIS for recovery of the funds.
Response to Internal Audit Reports
The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team have responded to the two internal audits ADD02 and
TR17.
ADD02 Anti Facilitation of Tax Evasion - The pilot of the awareness training to counter the
facilitation of tax evasion was sent to fraud investigators and the Head of Financial
Processing for review. The feedback has so far been positive. The roll-out of the
awareness training will be forwarded to the 272 officers identified in the audit ADD02,
w/c 31 January 2022. This has been delayed due to staff absences as a result of Covid
infections.
TR17 Fraud Protocols – Progress is being made on the recommendations of the audit. There
has been delays due to staff absences following Covid infection. A new draft Strategy
document is being developed and it is hoped it will be submitted for consideration to the
Strategic Director Finance and Governance by mid-February 2022. Monthly reviews include
a narrative comment on current investigation activity.
Training
The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team is working with Southwark learning to develop a new suite
of eLearning in our efforts to raise awareness across the council to combat fraud, bribery,
corruption and tax evasion.
Review of training material has confirmed that there has been no update to the AntiFraud, Bribery and corruption corporate training since 2012. A business case will be
submitted to the Strategic Director Finance and Governance for the purchase of corporate
refresher training for these topics. Whistleblowing should also be considered as part of the
training review.
Document Scanners
The Council uses document scanners to verify identity documents including passports, ID
cards and driving licences. The current equipment, located at various sites across the
borough, due to age and changes in Southwark IT systems have reached the end of their
operational effectiveness. The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team is engaging with key services
who currently use the scanners as well as other services who we believe will benefit from
future access to review the use of scanner technology. The availability of this technology
which has seen significant changes in recent years will create a journey through ID
verification that is effective and efficient for both staff and residents and continue to act
as a deterrent for fraudulent applications.

6

12

Key stakeholders and Services have provided an indication of the number of users and
volume of checks that may be required. The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team has identified 3
service providers who will be approached to provide a revised service to meet
organisational requirements and new working practices i.e., use of Apps to provide
residents and applicants with a more efficient journey when making applications or
needing to provide Identity verification and corroboration.
Fraud and Verification
The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team conducts reviews of housing waiting list and Homelessness
applications which have an identified cause for concern. A test of the veracity of the
application enables housing management to make an informed decision on the applicant’s
eligibility to remain on the housing register.
Between 1 April and 31 December 2021, we have received 45 referrals, 15 have been
removed or rejected, 13 have been recommended to be maintained the remaining are
waiting for further information from the applicant.
Right to Buy
The Council has introduced forms to check the veracity of the sources of funds used for
the purchase of properties under the right to buy scheme. Referrals are raised when the
cash element of the purchase exceeds HMRC guidelines. For the referrals we review the
source of cash funding and make a recommendation to the RTB team. Between 1st April
and 31st December 2021 there have been 48 referrals. 1 has withdrawn, 5 have been
denied, 26 have been approved and 16 applications require supporting evidence from the
applicants for the source of the funds before we can make a recommendation.
National Fraud Initiative
We continue to investigate matches identified by The Cabinet Office National Fraud
Initiative risk assessment focussing on reports that have been identified as high-risk
reports. There has been no significant change to NFI figures since the last report.
Fraud Response Plan
The Council’s Fraud Response Plan sets out in detail the Council’s approach to identifying
and dealing with potential fraud, the responsibilities of staff and the public in reporting
suspicions of fraud, the approach the Council is committed to in investigating allegations
of fraud, and the possible sanctions open to the Council when fraud is proven to have
taken place. We hope to launch the new Fraud Response Plan March 2022.
Other matters
The Fraud and Verification Team are providing presentations to Housing Solutions,
Resident Services to outline the roll of the team and how we provide support in reviewing
and assessing applications and measures the member of the housing teams can apply as
part of their due diligence.
We are supporting the Housing Applications Team annual review, providing statistics on
the work that has been completed by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team in relation to
housing register and homelessness applications. This information includes the number of
referrals received, recommendations made, and work completed to proactively review
applications over the past three years.

7

3. SUMMARY OF WORK IN PROGRESS
INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020-21
The table below includes those audits currently in draft or finalised since the last meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee. For those shaded in grey, the executive summaries are included in section 4.
Audit

Director / Audit Sponsor

Days

ToR issued

Fieldwork

QA / Reporting

Design

Operational
Effectiveness

Moderate

Moderate

Design

Operational
Effectiveness

2020-21
South Dock Marina

Director of Leisure

12






Final Report

13

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021-22
The table below includes those audits where planning work or fieldwork has commenced:
Audit

Director / Audit Sponsor

Days

Supporting Families Grant

Director of Children and
Families

24

EU project URBACT Thriving
Streets by performing First Level
Control (FLC)

Director of Regeneration and
Growth

Covid-19 Expenditure

Strategic Director of Finance
and Governance

ToR issued

Fieldwork

QA / Reporting

2021-22
Council guidance compared to new MHCLG
reviewed and audits completed on a sample of
10% of claims on a quarterly basis.

For the period to 31 December
2021 no exceptions were
identified for the sample of
claims reviewed.
For the period 1 April 2021 to
30 September 2021 no
exceptions were identified.

15



8




Final

Substantial

Substantial

Director / Audit Sponsor

Fraud Protocols

Strategic Director of Finance
and Governance

20

Youth Offending Service

Director of Children and
Families

15





Departmental response to schools
in financial difficulties

Director of Education

15





Health and Safety

Director of Asset
Management

20





IT – Hornbill Service Desk

Head of ICT

15





Data Protection

Director of Law and
Governance

15





TMOs - Cyclical Compliance
Audits – JMB Leathermarket

Director of Communities

15





TMOs - Cyclical Compliance
Audits – Cooper Close

Director of Communities

10





Adoption Services

Director of Children and
Families

15





Director of Adult Social Care

25

All Age Disabilities Service

Days

ToR issued



Fieldwork



QA / Reporting


Final


Final

Final

Final

Final

Final

Final

Final

Final






Draft issued
12/08/2021
Initial management
response received
17/09/2021 and

9

Design

Operational
Effectiveness

Moderate

Limited

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Limited

14

Audit

Audit

Director / Audit Sponsor

Days

ToR issued

Fieldwork

QA / Reporting

Design

Operational
Effectiveness

further management
response and evidence
received 25/01/2022.
Updated draft report
to be issued.
Objection Review

NNDR

Contract Mobilisation

10

Director of Exchequer
Services

15

Director of Law and
Democracy

25

Director of Commissioning

20






Draft issued
06/10/2021
Management action
plan being finalised.






Updated draft issued
27/01/2021






Draft report issued
22/11/2021, initial
management response
received 26/01/2022
and to be agreed with
chief officers






Draft report issued
20/01/2022

Fairer Future Procurement
Framework

Director of Law &
Governance

25

Continuing Healthcare

Director of Adult Social Care

15






Draft report issued
01/02/2022






Draft report in
collation

10

15

Contracts Register

Strategic Director of Finance
and Governance

Audit

Director / Audit Sponsor

Council Tax

Director of Exchequer
Services

15

Director of Customer
Experience / Director of
Exchequer Services

15

Director of Law and
Governance

15

Financial planning and budget
monitoring

Strategic Director of Finance
and Governance

25

Housing Benefits

Director of Exchequer
Services

15

Director of Customer
Experience

20

Director of Asset
Management

15

Director of Exchequer
Services

15

Head of Chief Executive’s
Office

15

Customer Access Strategy

Electoral Register and Elections

Major Works

Suspense Account Management

Emergency Planning

ToR issued



Fieldwork



QA / Reporting

Design

Operational
Effectiveness


Draft report in
collation






Draft report in
collation











Draft report in
collation


Draft report in
collation






Draft report in
collation












Draft report in
collation


Draft report in
collation






Draft report in
collation



11





16

IT Disaster Recovery

Days

Director / Audit Sponsor

Days

ToR issued

Fieldwork

QA / Reporting

Housing Tenancy Management
(Successions)

Director of Resident Services

15







Leisure Services

Director of Environment

15

Licensing

Director of Environment

15

Member / Officer Protocol

Director of Law &
Governance

15













Mosaic / Bupa Overpayments
Follow Up

Children and Adults Board

10







Older Peoples Services

Director of Adult Social Care

15





Payroll and HR

Director of Exchequer
Services

20





Pensions Administration

Strategic Director of Finance
and Governance / Pensions
Manager

15











Buyback of Properties including
Right to Buy

Director of Customer
Experience

15





Facilities Management

Director of Asset
Management

20









Highways Maintenance

Director of Environment

15

TMOs – Use of Reserves

Director of Communities

20

Southwark Building Services

Director of Asset
Management

20















12

Design

Operational
Effectiveness

17

Audit

4. EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES OF REPORTS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
EL14

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

South Dock Marina
January 2022

Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

1

Moderate

Moderate

Low

2

To provide assurance on the operational and financial management controls in place underpinning the running of the Marina.

Background:

The actual income against target is shown below.
Financial Year
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22

Original Budget
£1,572,179
£1,608,000
£1,620,000

Revised Budget
£1,572,179
£1,436,000
£ 1,620,000

Actuals (Feb 21 YTD)
£1,347,114
£1,419,169
YTD Nov 2021: £1,158,280

The last internal audit of this area (final report dated July 2017) concluded an opinion of limited assurance for the design and operational effectiveness of
the controls in place. Our subsequent follow up confirmed that three recommendations made which related to the implementation of the Havenstar
marina management system have not been implemented.

13

18

South Dock Marina is located on the south side of the river Thames and is the only central London marina with an integral boatyard. The Marina is spread
across two converted commercial docks, South Dock and Greenland Dock. The Council owns and operates the Marina and provides a modern marina
facility within a tranquil setting of redeveloped docks and a residential area. The Marina provides both leisure and residential berths on an annual basis.
With the exception of the visitor berths, where the length of stay is normally restricted to a maximum of three weeks, short-term stays are not provided.
The Marina operates separate waiting lists for residential and leisure berthing licences. Each list is sub divided by boat lengths to match berth sizes
available in the Marina. The residential waiting list is extremely long and the opportunity for a licence is infrequent. Most boats are sold with their
residential licence. The Marina offers a variety of services such as the use of crane, pressure washing and towing; these are requested via a Booking and
Registration Form and charged at set fees. The Marina however does not operate a boat maintenance service but does permit approved contractors to
carry out work within the boat yard and Marina. To allow this, the boat owner must present a method statement with a description of the works for
approval at the Marina office. All contractors must have third party liability insurance before starting work.

Our initial audit work was performed between 26 February 2021 and 30 June 2021, however due to Covid-19 restrictions at the time, we were unable to
perform testing for areas where documentation was held in hard copy format. As a result, we performed additional testing on site in October 2021 once
lockdown restrictions were lifted.
Good Practice:
•

We confirmed that the Marina has a documented waiting list procedure in place and statement on its website which clearly outlines the waiting
list process and berth allocation process.

•

We confirmed the accuracy and completeness of cash receipts received over a sample period of five weeks.

•

The Marina maintains a physical folder with evidence of third-party insurance for contracts employed by berth holders.

•

For a sample of ten boats (14 owners) we confirmed that key fob access was set up on the Net2 key fob system.

•

We were provided with the latest monitoring spreadsheet at the time of the audit, dated February 2021. Our review of the spreadsheet found
this to compare actual income against target income on a monthly basis, in addition to the prior year.

• We tested a sample of ten outstanding debts and confirmed that appropriate recovery action was being taken.
Key Findings:
•

Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate to substantial assurance
Design

•

The waiting list spreadsheet should be updated to include details of how the applicant contacted the Marina i.e., phone, form or
e-mail and the date of correspondence from both the applicant and the Marina.

Effectiveness

•

Going forward, the Fees and Charges list should be reviewed by both the Harbour Master and Harbour Support Officer before
being presented to Cabinet for approval.

•

The Council and Marina should work together and agree a way of paperless working such that all licence agreements and
supporting documentation can be stored digitally and centrally. Over the medium-long term, an exercise should be carried out to
digitise all documentation held in hard copy format, pending resources available.

14

19

The Marina does not have an electronic document management system in place to store scanned copies of paperwork relating to license
applications, agreements and related documents. All Berth holder licences are held in the Marina office in hard copy within lever arch files, in
addition to other supporting documentation such as Bill of Sale if the boat was sold. For a sample of 15 berth Holders, we noted one instance in
which a licence agreement could not be evidenced. We were informed by the Harbour Support Officer that the documentation for the Berth
Holder may be held in archive.
Conclusion:
From our audit work performed, we concluded that whilst the Marina has robust controls in place in relation to its key fob access, financial monitoring as
well as arrears and cash management, further improvements are required – particularly in relation to documentation management, as all documentation
relating to licence agreements are currently held in hard copy format within lever arch files at the Marina office.

CAS49

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Departmental response to
schools in financial difficulties

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

4

Moderate

Moderate

Low

1

November 2021
Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide assurance over the adequacy of the design and operational effectiveness of the Council’s approach to identifying,
supporting, and agreeing action with regards to schools in financial difficulty, heading towards deficit, and supporting deficit
recovery plans.

Good Practice:
•

The Corporate Information Governance Manager supplied policies and procedures related to Information Governance, Data Retention, Data Rights
and Corporate Records. This documentation provided was both comprehensive and well-constructed, breaking down potentially complex
information into easily consumable content.

15

20

Background:
The Local Authority allocates funding to maintained schools located within its borough throughout each year, in line with the Scheme for Financing
Schools policy. The exact amount provided to a school is based on a formula set by the Council, with agreement of the School’s Forum which is based on
the national regulations, it utilises factors such a pupil numbers and characteristics. The level of funding provided to each school within Southwark has
been reducing over recent years, a major contributor to this is falling pupil numbers. The significant drop in pupil numbers has resulted in schools
needing to both manage their staffing levels and ensure an adequate curriculum is delivered. Schools receive support in these areas from the Education
Directorate.
Overall, a school’s financial responsibility rests with the Governors. Schools employ their own business manager and financial advisor. The Education
service supports the supervision of these funding procedures and provides oversight relating to the assistance of schools who are in financial difficulties.
The Council’s schools Finance team do not offer schools a traded service to manage their budget, nor have any plans to offer such a service going
forward. Therefore, schools employ their own business managers and financial advisors. The Finance Team liaises with schools on funding and budgetary
issues. A team of Education Advisors provide an annual schedule of school visits to assist them with governance and curriculum related issues. We
acknowledge that the current school closure programme taking place across Southwark has created an additional workload. The Education Advisor Team
is modifying its’ schools visit frequency to accommodate its’ recent reduction in staff resources.
The Schools in Financial Difficulty Panel, which is operated by the Council’s HR department, provide decisions on whether apportioned money from the
Dedicated School Grant can be utilised in supporting schools with paying their redundancy costs to meet planned restructuring.
For the six individual school audits undertaken this financial year we identified five that facing financial difficulties with deficits amounting to
£1,262,943. This could result in the Council having to advance or loan significant amounts of money to these schools for them to meet payments should
these deficits continue to increase, this risks potential financial strain on the Council in the event of non-repayment of funds.

•

We found that the Council has retained extensive reporting metrics for Freedom of Information (FOI) and Subject Access Requests (SARs). The
metrics provided demonstrated a strong management system to enable compliance with GDPR requirements.

•

The Data Protection Impact Assessment process is particularly robust, with a sound breakdown of “test” questions designed to form a solid
conclusion, enabling the decision-making process.

•

Examples of intranet pages from the Council’s intranet were provided, covering an initial overview and what measures are in place to comply with
the GDPR, followed by extensive information about subjects such as data incidents and breaches.

We noted the following areas of good practice:
•

The Finance Team has comprehensive and operationally effective policies and procedures to identify and monitor schools which are experiencing,
or heading towards, financial difficulties.

•

The Finance Team has robust financial templates, training courses and support provisions in place to assist schools with general financial
management as well as managing difficulties. These tools provide a platform to allow schools to take ownership of their individual budget,
strengthen their financial management capabilities, and manage in the event of financial issues arising.

Key Findings:
Seven schools (9.5% of Council supported school population) have outstanding loans, five schools of which have made no repayments towards their
balance within the 2020-21 or this financial year.

•

There is no defined process map outlining how the various school supporting stakeholders / teams within the Council should collaborate and assist
each other in managing schools in financial difficulty, in addition the school supporting teams’ individual responsibilities are undefined.

•

There are inconsistent practices in the frequency of reporting, and internal collaboration meetings taking place between Finance, the Education
service, HR and other relevant stakeholders to discuss the status of schools in financial difficulty.

•

The Council does not have a compiled list and / or a risk register containing common reasons schools are falling into financial difficulties to aid
their effective management.

Conclusion:
We have provided an opinion of moderate assurance in respect of the design, and moderate assurance over the operational effectiveness of the controls
in place in respect of the Council’s support for schools in financial difficulty.

16

21

•

IT11

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Hornbill Service Desk Review
November 2021

Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

2

Moderate

Moderate

Low

1

To provide assurance over the design and operational effectiveness of the Council’s IT Service desk (Hornbill) operations, only
including a review of IT security related tickets raised through the service desk.

Background:
The IT service desk plays a significant role in the day-to-day operations of any organisation. The operations of Southwark Council (“the Council”) are
heavily reliant on a wide variety of information technology systems, applications, and devices. Although this technology is designed to be user friendly,
problems still inevitably arise.
An effective service desk has significant associated costs, both in terms of resources involved and infrastructure needed (e.g., ticketing software,
incident management and tracking software). The Council entered into a shared service arrangement for an ICT Service Desk which commenced on 1
November 2017, with Brent Council and Lewisham Council, to achieve savings through increased efficiencies and economies of scale.
An Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) was established which details an agreed service description which stipulates the service level agreement (SLA) and
key performance indicators, management processes, service desk and reporting. The SLA states that the service level performance will be monitored on
the basis of the calls categorised against the following incident prioritisation and response standards:
P1
P2
P3
P4
P5

–
–
–
–
-

Resolve 95% within 4 working hours
Resolve 95% within 8 working hours
Resolve 80% within 2 working days
80% within SLA for request type
Respond to customer within 4 days and resolve within time agreed with customer

The Joint IT Committee (JIC) has been established which meets quarterly and is supported by a Joint Management Board (JMB) and an Operational
Management Group (OMG) to implement the strategic decisions made by the JIC, oversight of the day-to-day monitoring of the Shared ICT Service,
reviewing and agreeing the performance management framework. The Hornbill application is deployed as the service desk tool.
The July 2021 JIC meeting minutes confirmed that the shared service logged 1,225 tickets relating to Southwark Application Teams between 1st
February 2021 and 31st May 2021.
The Shared Technology Service (STS) performance report presented to Operational Management Group on 28 September 2021 meeting, detailed the
following monthly performance has been reported:

17

22

•
•
•
•
•

Month

Total P1
Calls

Total P2
Calls

Total P3
Calls

Total P4
Calls

Total P5
Calls

% P1
Met SLA

% P2
Met SLA

% P3
Met SLA

% P4
Met SLA

% P5
Met SLA

Apr-21

2

4

873

1,228

38

100%

25%

58%

76%

84%

May-21

2

17

1,203

1,302

34

100%

59%

60%

65%

91%

Jun-21

2

23

1,152

1,476

64

100%

39%

46%

53%

88%

Jul-21

3

8

1,369

1,747

38

0%

38%

56%

57%

79%

Aug-21

4

8

1,146

1,551

39

75%

63%

51%

57%

72%

Our audit sample included only IT security related tickets (selective P3, P4) as agreed with the Council, such as password reset, login fail, reporting
lost/stolen devices.
Good Practice:
The Shared Technology Services (STS) has a documented ‘Escalations Procedures’ in place, providing specific guidance on the protocols to be
followed in the event of an escalation of incidents. The procedure clearly identifies the first, second and third line of contacts in the event of
escalating an incident, which if unresolved, is further escalated to the Head of STS Operations and Council specific IT Business Relationship
Manager, for investigation • The STS has a documented ‘Access Protocols’ in place, providing process flow guidance on the steps to be
followed in the event of a new starter or leaver. The STS imports an extract from Hornbill daily at 05:00 pm, which is reviewed against the
Council’s Active Directory (AD) to check for new standard accounts, changes, and updates

•

The STS reports their service performance to the Operational Management Group (OMG) monthly. The terms of reference for the OMG have
been approved and the quorum includes representatives from STS and all the three councils. The OMG reports to Joint Management Board
(JMB), which then reports to Joint IT Committee (JIC) on quarterly basis

•

Our review of OMG meeting minutes and performance slide packs for June 2021, July 2021 and August 2021 confirmed that key information
was discussed such as review of previous actions, operational performance, service improvement, project and programmes, anticipated
renewal changes, audit update, financial update, information and cyber security risks and updates on the target operating model

•

The STS monitors the User Feedback Survey reports on the monthly basis and reports the satisfaction percentages to the Operational
Management Group (OMG). Our review of the STS monthly reports for the sample period and the corresponding Hornbill data confirmed that
these have been reported to OMG
Key Findings:
•

We found that the STS is reporting performance, based on the tickets closed rather than tickets resolved as required by the agreed SLA

• Our review of a sample of incidents identified the following:
- For 2/8 P3 tickets, insufficient details were held within Hornbill relating to the reasons for delays to resolution within agreed timeframes
- For 1/8 P3 tickets, the ticket was assigned to the relevant technical officer twelve days after the ticket was initially logged
- For 1/7 P4 tickets, the ticket was not closed even though the issue was resolved within two days after it had been logged
- For 1/7 P4 tickets, the reopened ticket was escalated and closed as an unfulfilled request due to lack of response from the requestor, even
though the requestor had provided the relevant information

18

23

•

- For 4/5 tickets with no priority assigned, the tickets were not closed even though the issue was resolved on the same day it had been logged
- For 1/5 tickets with no priority assigned, the ticket was resolved but closed after eight months of resolution
Conclusion:
We found that the Shared Technology Services (STS) has adequate and documented systems of internal control in place. Our review of controls confirmed
that these have been designed in line with the performance targets specified within the agreed SLA. The SLA service specifications have been recently
revised in July 2021 to ensure they are in line with industry best practices.
However, a small level of non-compliance has been identified such as the Processes Manual is due a review and some errors in the monthly performance
reported, most of which under-reported performance.
This has led to our opinion of “Moderate” assurance for control design and “Moderate” assurance for operational effectiveness.
Our review of performance has been limited to P3 and P4 targets and our opinion reflects that these are being under-reported. A review of other targets
may have resulted in a different opinion.
Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate / limited to substantial assurance
Design

Review of Hornbill self-service categories to devise a formal ticketing manual. The manual should detail the steps to be
performed for ticketing management within agreed timelines

•

Review and update their current reporting structure and metrics to include the analysis of resolution of tickets against the SLA
targets

•

Perform regular spot checks to highlight instances of non-compliance and to provide individuals with appropriate refresher
training

19

24

Effectiveness

•

HM52

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Health and Safety
November 2021

Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

3

Moderate

Moderate

Low

-

To provide assurance over the design and operational effectiveness of the controls relating to the application of health and safety
policies and practices across the Council. The review also included the work recently undertaken by the health and safety Remodel
Project.

Good Practice:
•

The centralised health & safety (H&S) function and structure is in line with the objectives of the Remodel Project

•

An effective communication strategy is in place to raise staff awareness of new H&S procedures. Supplemental information is released as new
procedures and tools are launched.

20

25

Background:
Health and Safety (H&S) management, throughout the Southwark Safety Management System, is cascaded within the Council from the Chief Executive to
the Strategic Directors. The framework to manage health and safety is documented in the Southwark Safety Reference Manual. There is a Corporate
Policy Statement supported by a series of mandatory safety directives and guidance notes. Each department is required to develop their own policy
statements, processes, procedures, and standards to comply with the corporate requirements. Additionally, there are a number of key corporate H&S
policies including fire safety, violence and aggression, occupational stress and asbestos. This review focused on the application of these policies and the
consistency as to which they are implemented across the Council.
There were several challenges identified as part of the H&S Remodel Project including capacity challenges, inconsistent governance, reporting and
communication, and lack of clarity around what the Council requires from its corporate health and safety service. There was an inconsistent H&S
structure across the Council with some H&S advisors reporting to the Corporate Head of H&S and some retained by the individual directorates making
the provision of strong H&S leadership across the Council difficult to deliver. The purpose of the Remodel Project was to enable the Council to
demonstrate active leadership and visible commitment from the top.
Phase 1 of the project was expected to take approximately six months after which the Steering Board had aimed to publish its recommendations. The
timescale for Phase 2 was agreed to be dependent on the outcome of Phase 1 and it was estimated to take a further 12 months to implement the
project. The Head of Facilities Management and the Head of H&S advised that the delivery of the project was impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and is
now expected to be implemented before the end of 2021.
In March 2019, the Chief Officer Team (COT) approved a series of proposed a refreshed approach to H&S including a revised structure and operating
model. This review determined the progress of implementing these outputs.

•

Relevant training packages are available for staff to upskill themselves on H&S procedures along with the Assure incident and risk management
database

•

The Annual Corporate Incident report lists incidents over a twelve-month rolling period. It has key breakdowns by Directorate/ Division and
Category, trends are discussed at meetings and, where appropriate, mitigating actions are discussed.

Key Findings:
•

The Council’s overall corporate H&S policy was published in May 2017 and has not been updated within the last two years, which contravenes policy.
Whilst relevant H&S regulations are included, the documented governance processes do not adequately reflect those in place within the Council.

•

The Remodel Project does not have an active steering board or chair in place to oversee completion or regular reporting to highlight the status of
expected outputs.

•

Actions contained within the Remodel risk register do not have assigned individual owners or target delivery dates.

•

Incidents recorded on Assure are not consistently approved and followed up within the system, to provide an up-to-date record of progress against
the event. Lack of formal follow up records do not provide sufficient confirmation that raised H&S incidents or gaps are being effectively managed
or overseen to mitigate staff risk.

21

26

Conclusion:
The Council has implemented a centralised H&S function, which aligns to the objectives of the Remodel Project. However, the Council’s H&S policy is
currently out of date and the project steering board is no longer in place to confirm that all the Remodel’s expected outputs have been implemented.
The Assure incident recording software has been implemented across the Council, however, there needs to be greater consistency in its usage in order
for the Council to receive reliable data relating to H&S incidents. We do not currently have assurance that H&S processes are being adequately managed
across all areas of the Council, which is a risk to staff, visitors and contractors.
Based upon our work, we have provided an opinion of moderate assurance in respect of both the design and the operational effectiveness of the controls
in place in respect to the organisational H&S mechanisms.

TR15

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Data Protection Compliance
December 2021

Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

4

Moderate

Moderate

Low

1

To assess the Council’s compliance with Data Protection
regulations and standards, including the requirements of
the GDPR, that these have been applied in practice and
that sufficient training has been completed by all
officers.

Added
value:

We benchmarked the Council’s data protection arrangements
against best practice frameworks and good practice examples
from other organisations.

A number of good practice points were identified:
•

The Corporate Information Governance Manager supplied policies and procedures related to Information Governance, Data Retention, Data Rights
and Corporate Records. This documentation provided was both comprehensive and well-constructed, breaking down potentially complex

22

27

Background:
Information in many forms facilitates London Borough of Southwark’s (the Council’s) ability to provide its critical services to the public, and it can range
from being personal identifiable through to corporate confidential. Therefore, the secure management and use of information has become more
important as both expectations of information governance, and the service expected by the Council’s customers are becoming more demanding. Using
and managing information appropriately has a significant part to play in the delivery of change required by the Council to continue to meet these
expectations.
In May 2018, the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) replaced the Data Protection Act 1998 (the DPA) as the regulation governing the protection
of personal identifiable information in the UK. The DPA 2018 sets out the framework for data protection law in the UK and was amended on 1 January
2021 by regulations under the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, to reflect the UK’s status outside the EU.
The GDPR is retained in domestic law now that the transition period has ended, but the UK has the ability to keep the framework under review. The ‘UK
GDPR’ sits alongside an amended version of the DPA 2018. As a data controller, the Council is responsible for ensuring that it complies with the GDPR
and that parties that process information on its behalf are compliant with the GDPR.
The penalties for being in breach of the GDPR are greater than those that could be levied under the DPA. As well as the ability to impose financial
penalties, the Information Commissioner’s Office (the ICO) can restrict or prevent an organisation from processing personal identifiable information.
These penalties would result in significant financial or reputational damage, and in a worst-case scenario, this could prevent the Council from operating
its critical functions and services.
Good Practice:

information into easily consumable content.
•

We found that the Council has retained extensive reporting metrics for Freedom of Information (FOI) and Subject Access Requests (SARs). The
metrics provided demonstrated a strong management system to enable compliance with GDPR requirements.

•

The Data Protection Impact Assessment process is particularly robust, with a sound breakdown of “test” questions designed to form a solid
conclusion, enabling the decision-making process.

•

Examples of intranet pages from the Council’s intranet were provided, covering an initial overview and what measures are in place to comply with
the GDPR, followed by extensive information about subjects such as data incidents and breaches.

•

The Council’s Data Breach Response Plan is well constructed and clearly outlined the definition of a breach in comparison with an incident, along
with supporting documentation such as the Data Incident Report Form.

•

The process for assessing and defining the impact of a data breach includes a published checklist of detailed steps that must be followed in order to
define the impact of the breach. Whenever a breach (or suspected breach) occurs, the outcome of the initial assessment dictates the next stage of
the remediation process. If it is confirmed that a breach of the Data Protection Act has been committed, or if a data subject is at risk of serious
harm, the Council’s Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO), Monitoring Officer and Strategic Director must be informed. The data breach reporting
form that supports this process is available to all staff and is located on the Council's intranet.

Key Findings:
Freedom of Information/Subject Access Request response rates are consistently below target for specific departments/service areas such as CW
(Council Wide) and F&G (Finance & Governance). Overall, 22%-38% of cases were dealt with late (Finding 1 – Medium)

•

Dissolution of the Information Governance & Security Group has left a void that should be filled by alternative data governance arrangements
(Finding 2 – Medium)

•

Although user education/security awareness has been provided to staff, this is not done on a regular basis. Ideally, Data Protection and Information
Security training should be provided at least on an annual basis, and not only during the initial New Starter induction process. This is particularly
important due to staff working from remote locations (Finding 3 – Medium)

•

The Council’s Data Classification plans, which would help to manage data appropriately, have been stalled and not progressed to completion
(Finding 4 – Medium)

Conclusion:
Overall, the Council ably demonstrated that a significant amount of focus has been paid to Data Protection principles, and essential processes and
policies are in place to support the requirements of the GDPR.
The Council maintains a lot of information related to data protection, but we noted that several key policies are out of date and would benefit from a
review. This finding was also noted for several intranet pages.
23

28

•

Another area in need of improvement is the Freedom of Information (FOI) and Subject Access Request (SAR) response rates from certain Service Areas
within the Council - particularly CW and F&G. Both these Service Areas consistently failed to meet response rate targets for the three-year duration
reviewed within this audit (2019-2021).
For the most part, the design of the Council’s Data Protection arrangements is sound, it is the execution of the interlocked processes that requires
additional focus, ensuring that all staff are regularly reminded of their responsibilities. The Council maintains an impressive portfolio of policies, but it
is essential that policies are maintained and regularly communicated to staff. Consequently, we have concluded moderate assurance over both the
design and the operational effectiveness of the Trust’s Data Protection arrangements.
Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate to substantial assurance
Design
Effectiveness

Intranet pages should be updated with the most up to date guidance

•

Staff should be encouraged to familiarise themselves with the content.

•

Policies and procedures should be maintained and communicated

•

Staff education should be a priority, with annual refresher sessions on an annual basis – including non-office-based workers

•

Service Areas that consistently fail to meet the published timeframes for FOI/SAR should be identified and reminded of their
responsibilities

24

29

•

EL36-2

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Leathermarket JMB Tenancy
Management Organisation

Operational
effectiveness

High

1

Design

Medium

1

Moderate

Moderate

Low

-

January 2022
Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide assurance over the adequacy of the design of controls and operational effectiveness relating to the TMO’s operational and
financial processes, such as financial management, procurement and statutory compliance, including health and safety, fire risk
assessment and asbestos.
We also sought to determine whether the current controls are in line with the provisions of the Modular Management Agreement
(MMA) signed in 2013.

Background:
Leathermarket Joint Management Board (JMB) is Southwark’s largest resident-managed housing organisation managing 1,500 homes in the borough. In
April 2013, Leathermarket JMB became the first TMO in the country to become self-financing. This means that the TMO is able to retain all rent and
service charges and thereby model a business plan over 30 years to deliver continuous improvements. In return, the TMO is paying off a proportionate
amount of the debt of all council properties, paying a fair share of attributable core costs and buying retained services from the Council.

The TMI Team Leader advised that there have been a number of changes made by the TMO, in the governance arrangements and the operational
management of the TMO since 2013, however these have not been reflected in the MMA as a result of the evolving nature of the self-financing TMO
model.
Good Practice:
•

There is regular budget monitoring and investigation of budget variances

•

There is good segregation of duties with regards to the raising of purchase orders and authorisation of payments

•

Clear and up to date financial procedures are in place, while the cheque book is securely stored, and its use regularly monitored

•

The use of the organisation’s debit card is appropriate, and transactions are signed off by senior management

•

Governance and reporting arrangements are sound; Management Committee has clear terms of reference and roles and responsibilities, while all

25

30

The Council has a Modular Management Agreement (MMA) in place with the TMO, which is monitored on behalf of the Council by the Tenants
Management Initiatives Team (TMI). The agreements outline the services that each party is responsible for in the management of housing stock and the
requirements on the TMOs being the providers of the housing services.

active Members have completed declaration of interest forms within the last 12 months
•

We reviewed the minutes for the last three Management Committee meetings and found the meetings were quorate and actions and decisions were
clearly recorded

•

Our sample testing found the TMO’s debt recovery, repairs and lettings processes are following agreed procedures. Appropriate action was taken
against underperforming contractors, while proper checks were undertaken by TMO staff before letting properties to new tenants

•

The TMO has an up-to-date Equal Opportunities policy (November 2020), complying with the Council’s key equalities requirements, as per the MMA

•

The HR policies and procedures in place (including the performance management framework) comply with Council requirements. We are satisfied
that the TMO is undertaking appropriate pre-employment checks for new staff

•

All four secure tenants in our sample had a gas safety certificate within the last 12 months

•

Key performance indicators (KPIs) are regularly reported to members.

Key Findings:
There are nine fire safety actions from the most recent fire risk assessments across the six blocks we tested that have not been completed. Of
these actions, seven are medium priority (two are low priority) and implementation targets date back to August 2020.

•

The current service charge arrangements do not reflect those documented in the MMA. The agreement also refers to the need for a 30-year major
works plan, however in practice the plans are for a shorter time period. The document therefore requires revision to reflect current arrangements.

Conclusion:
Overall, the TMO’s arrangements and processes are well designed and operating effectively to limit the level of risk. We concluded an overall opinion of
moderate assurance for both the design of the control framework and operational effectiveness of the controls in place.
Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate to substantial assurance
Design

•

Work with the Monitoring Officer to update the MMA so that it reflects current practices.

Effectiveness

•

Take action to address the overdue fire safety recommendations for each block.

26

31

•

EL36-1

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Cooper Close Tenancy
Management Organisation

Operational
effectiveness

High

-

Design

Medium

4

Moderate

Moderate

Low

1

January 2022
Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide assurance over the adequacy of the design of controls and operational effectiveness relating to the TMO’s operational and
financial processes, such as financial management, procurement and statutory compliance, including health and safety, fire risk
assessment and asbestos.

Background:
The Council has a Modular Management Agreement (MMA) in place with the TMO, which is monitored on behalf of the Council by the Tenants
Management Initiatives Team (TMI). The agreements outline the services that each party is responsible for in the management of housing stock.
The Cooper Close estate has 63 properties. The make-up of the estate is roughly two-thirds leaseholders and one-third council tenants.
Good Practice:
The MMA has recently been revised to reflect current practices with regards to leaseholder management and service charge administration

•

The Equality and Diversity document (April 2021) complies with the Council’s key equalities requirements, as per the MMA

•

Our testing found that debts are recovered, and repairs are undertaken in accordance with agreed procedures

•

All five properties tested had a gas safety certificate issued within the last 12 months

•

Key HR policies and procedures are in place and are in line with the Council’s requirements

•

We reviewed the minutes for the last three Management Committee meetings and found the meetings were quorate and actions and decisions were
clearly recorded

•

All Management Committee members have completed a Declaration of Interest form within the last 12 months

•

Clear and up to date financial procedures are in place, while the cheque book is securely stored, and its use regularly monitored

•

The use of the organisation’s debit card is appropriate, and transactions are signed off by senior management

•

There is good segregation of duties with regards to the raising of purchase orders and authorisation of payments

•

We reviewed the actions from the most recent fire risk assessments (April 2019) and found the TMO have implemented all actions they were

27

32

•

responsible for.
Key Findings:
The following areas require improvement:
•

The reasons behind budget variances should be better documented

•

Some key documents, such as the Cooper Close Rules (which include the Management Committee’s terms of reference) and the staff handbook
would benefit from a review

•

There is no standalone performance management framework, so arrangements are not in line with TMI expectations

•

Record keeping of procurement information should be improved to better demonstrate compliance with procurement rules.

Conclusion:
We conclude that the TMO’s arrangements and processes in place are generally well designed and operating to limit the level of risk, although there are
some opportunities to further strengthen controls.

Governance and HR arrangements are generally satisfactory, although there are opportunities to review and refresh some key documents. Our debt
recovery and repairs testing found that tenants are managed in line with both the MMA and documented procedures. The TMO have also taken action to
address the most recent fire risk assessment actions they were responsible for implementing.
Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate to substantial assurance
Design

Effectiveness

•

Amend the relevant reports to include a section on the reasons behind budget variances

•

Introduce a performance management framework that is in line with TMI guidance and expectations

•

Review and refresh the Management Committee’s terms of reference (in the Cooper Close Rules document)

•

Review and refresh the staff handbook

•

Ensure procurement information is retained to demonstrate compliance with finance rules and that suppliers offer value for
money

28

33

Financial controls are generally sound. We found there is up-to-date guidance, good segregation of duties over financial transactions, appropriate use of
the TMO’s debit card and sufficient physical security arrangements over the cheque book. However, while we evidenced that members monitor the
budget each month, details in reports and meeting minutes explaining the reasons for budget variances are limited.

CAS20

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

Adoption Services
January 2022

Purpose of
audit:

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Operational
effectiveness

High

2

Design

Medium

1

Moderate

Limited

Low

1

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place over payments made to adopters, to confirm accuracy of payments
derived from documentation and appropriate approvals.

Background:
The Council is a part of Adopt London South (ALS) which is made up of nine Local Authorities. ALS is a regionalised adoption agency formed as part of
the Government’s plans to improve adoption services for children and adopters. ALS specialist adoption staff aim to find families for children and offer
post adoption support to children, families, birth parents and adopted adults.
All approved adopters have an allocated social worker in the Adoption Service. Once approved, the worker works jointly with the child’s social worker
where a child is identified as a possible placement. The adoption social worker and the child’s social worker carry out a needs assessment to consider
support to the placement immediately and in the future. A variety of issues are considered including financial support (one-off payments and on-going),
health, therapeutic and educational needs. These are outlined in the Southwark Adoption Placement Report and Adoption Support Plan for each child
placed for adoption.

34

Payment to adoptive parents may be made in the following ways:
•

Regular payments - which is based upon the developmental age of the child and calculated as agreed from time to time by the Council.

•

Lump sum payments (settling in costs, special needs and adaptations), which covers items or adaptations that are required as a consequence of
assessment of each child's individual needs.

•

Payments in special circumstances (for example, a child with additional needs or where foster carers adopt a child for whom they are already caring
or where adopters incur legal expenses in contested cases).

Where regular financial support is considered appropriate, the amount to be paid to adoptive parents may be determined by an assessment of their
means. This takes account of the adopters' income and resources, reasonable outgoings and commitments, and the financial needs and resources of the
child. As part of this assessment, the adopters are asked to complete a Financial Assessment Form and the completed form is forwarded to the Finance
Department. The Adoption Service Manager decides the level of support to be included in the draft Adoption Support Plan having regard to this
assessment and obtains budgetary approval as necessary depending on the amount.

29

In relation to the proposed financial support for a new placement, the Adoption Support Plan is submitted to the Adoption Panel with the Adoption
Placement Report when a matching recommendation is being considered. The adopters then receive a written confirmation of the decision to provide
financial support. This will include the amount and terms of the support and information about annual reviews.
The Adoption Service carries out an annual review of the financial support, taking into account the information provided by the adopters. Any proposed
variation or termination of the financial support must be notified to the person(s) concerned and dealt with by the Adoption Service in accordance with
the Adoption Support Plan. Any decision to vary or terminate should also consider whether it is appropriate to seek to recover all or any of the financial
support already paid.
Good Practice:
For a sample of 10 adopters, we were able to confirm that in all 10 cases, an annual allowance letter was sent by the Finance Officer (Adoption &
Fostering Service) informing them of their new allowance and whether this is an increase or decrease compared to the previous allowance, in
addition to supporting justifications. The exception to this was a case (258446) where the adoption allowance was set to £0.

•

For our sample of 10 adopters tested, we confirmed that in all 10 cases, a purchase order was raised by the Finance Officer and issued to Children's
Services Finance in order for the changes to the weekly allowance to be approved for payment. We confirmed that in all 10 cases, there was a
segregation of duties between the individual raising the purchase order and individual approving the changes to the weekly allowances. We also
noted the purchase orders clearly detailed the start and end dates of the old and new weekly allowances.

•

For our sample of 10 adopters tested, we confirmed that in 9/10 cases, a financial assessment was carried out, which was signed by a carer, social
worker and by the service manager. We did note one instance (258446) where this could not be evidenced but, as noted above, the adopter’s
allowance was set to £0, with an explanatory note confirming that services have been suspended since 21/2/18 due to the adoption assessment not
being returned.

Key Findings:
•

The Council has in place a policies and procedures handbook online which is accessible publicly, reflects the London Child Protection Procedures
Manual and includes a dedicated section for Adoption and Special Guardianship. We found that the handbook had not been updated since April 2019
and still made reference to the National Minimum Standards for Adoption 2011 when these standards were revised in 2014.

•

The form for financial assessments does not clearly stipulate the thresholds for when approval is required from either the Team Manager or Service
Manager. Therefore, we could not provide assurance that the appropriate officer had approved the assessment in nine of the cases tested.

•

We were advised that due to Covid-19, annual reviews were not taking place. This was evident from our sample testing which showed that in all 10
cases, annual reviews were meant to take place between July 2019 and January 2021 however the dates of the latest reviews provided for our
sample were dated between July 2018 and January 2020 (high priority).

•

From our testing of a sample of 15 adoption payments we found that in three instances, a signed purchase order could not be evidenced. For the 12
cases where a purchase order could be evidenced, we found that in all cases, the purchase order was not signed by the individual making the
requisition, and in one instance, there was no evidence of who authorised the purchase order. Additionally, in two cases, we were not provided

30

35

•

evidence of the purchase order being entered into Mosaic or who it was approved by (high priority).
Conclusion:
Whilst the Council has in place templates for financial assessments, correspondence letters and purchase orders which we were able to see through our
testing, we found there to be several issues with regards to the application of those controls over the signing of financial assessment and purchase
orders, in addition to a lack of evidence regarding the approval of payments in Mosaic. Our testing also found that annual reviews had not been taking
place due to Covid-19. Finally, our review of the Council’s Policies and Procedures handbook noted that it had not been updated to reflect the National
Minimum Standards for Adoption 2014. Therefore, we concluded an opinion of moderate assurance on the design of the control framework and limited
assurance on the effectiveness of the controls in place.
Looking forward: supporting the Council’s journey from moderate to substantial assurance
Design

Effectiveness

The Council should update its policies and procedures handbook, specifically the Adoption and Special Guardianship section
in order to reflect any changes in staff or procedures since April 2019. Additionally, the National Minimum Standards for
Adoption 2011 should also be updated to take into account the latest 2014 revision of the standard.

•

The Council should ensure that the financial assessments form is updated to include the thresholds showing when approval is
required by either the Team or Service Manager.

•

The Council should perform an exercise to ensure it has captured the latest contact details of all adopters in addition to
identifying all financial assessments which are over 12 months and ensure that these are brought up to date.

•

All payments made to adopters should be supported by a signed purchase order, with signatures from both the individual
making the requisition and the approver. All purchase orders should be entered into Mosaic, with a clear audit trail of who
input the purchase order and who approved the purchase order.

31

36

•

5. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS STATUS
Of the 373 high and medium recommendations relating to 201718 to 2020-21, that have fallen due as at the end of October
2021, we have confirmed with reference to evidence that 324
have been fully implemented or superseded, representing 87%.
The chart shows the relative percentages for each of the four
years.
The implementation rate for previous recommendations has
remained unchanged at 87% since the last report to the
Committee. Whilst there are some longstanding
recommendations from previous years that remain to be
implemented, these have now reduced in number.

37

Some audits remain for which the required update was not
provided by the date of reporting, which are indicated in our
summary below. The implementation rate may be higher than
87%, however without management responses and supporting
evidence, we cannot confirm this.
There are also a number of audits where the originally agreed
implementation date has not been met and a new date has
been provided.
The implementation status of each internal audit is summarised
in the table overleaf.
Please note that the table does not include audits where:
• All recommendations have been implemented
• Recommendations that will be followed up as part of
another audit during the year (for example key financial
systems)
• Recommendations are not yet due for implementation.

32

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION RATES BY AUDIT
Audit Area

Total High &
Medium
recommendations
due for
implementation

H

M

H

M

H

M

5

-

2

1

2

-

-

Implemented

In progress at the
follow up date

Awaiting update,
revised date or
evidence

% Verified
complete

Management
Implementation dates

40%

April 2019
December 2019
Awaiting update

Chief Executive’s Department
2017-18
Land Charges

3

-

-

-

3

-

-

0%

January 2021
December 2021
Awaiting evidence

2020-21
Community Infrastructure Levy

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

0%

December 2020
Awaiting evidence

2019-20
Mental Health Services

4

-

1

2

1

-

-

25%

September 2020
Awaiting evidence

2020-21
Foster Carer Payments

4

-

-

-

-

-

4

0%

December 2020
Awaiting update

2020-21
Payments to Children and
Families

3

-

-

-

-

1

2

0%

January 2021
Awaiting update

2020-21
Travel Assistance

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

0%

September 2021
March 2022

2020-21
Supported Living

3

-

-

1

2

-

-

0%

September 2021
Awaiting evidence

2020-21
Direct Payments

3

-

-

-

3

-

-

0%

August 2021
December 2021

Children’s and Adults Department

33

38

2019-20
S106 Agreements

Audit Area

Total High &
Medium
recommendations
due for
implementation

Implemented
H

M

In progress at the
follow up date
H

M

Awaiting update,
revised date or
evidence
H

% Verified
complete

Management
Implementation dates

M
February 2022

2021-2022
Departmental Response to
Schools in Financial Difficulties

4

-

3

-

1

-

-

75%

December 2021
Awaiting evidence

4

-

-

-

-

-

4

0%

November 2021
Awaiting evidence

Environment and Leisure Department
2020-21
Climate Change
Finance and Governance Department

3

1

-

-

2

-

-

33%

April 2020
January 2021
November 2021
Awaiting evidence

2020-21
Records Management

1

-

-

1

-

-

-

0%

March 2021
November 2021
Awaiting evidence

2020-21
Bankline

3

-

1

-

-

-

2

33%

April 2021
November 2021
Awaiting evidence

2021-22
Anti-Facilitation of Tax Evasion

3

-

1

-

2

-

-

33%

December 2021
January 2022

50%

December 2017
October 2018
June 2019
September 2020
April 2021
October 2021

Housing and Modernisation Department

2017-18
IT – Network Security

8

1

3

1

34

3

-

-

39

2019-20
Home Ownership – Garages

Audit Area

Total High &
Medium
recommendations
due for
implementation

Implemented
H

M

In progress at the
follow up date
H

M

Awaiting update,
revised date or
evidence
H

% Verified
complete

Management
Implementation dates

M
March 2022

2019-20
Materials

3

2020-21
Software Asset Management

4

2020-21
Housing Application and
Allocations

2

-

1

-

2

-

-

1

-

3

-

-

1

-

1

-

-

33%

June 2020
April 2021
June 2021
October 2021
January 2022
February 2022

-

25%

March 2022
September 2022

-

50%

September 2021
February 2022

40

35

RECOMMENDATIONS NOT YET IMPLEMENTED
The tables below show the latest updates with regards to the recommendations not yet implemented, where this has been provided. It excludes
recommendations that have not fallen due.
Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

Chief Executives Department
2017-18 Land Charges
Planning support and land charges
manager
Group manager – validation and fast
track
Director of planning
March 2019

We were advised by the Planning Support & Local Land Charges Manager
that the costs of the land charges service have been undertaken in the
past by the Senior Finance Manager and Land Charges Manager to ensure
the charges match the cost of the service. There is also yearly
benchmarking on the costs of the land charge service.
Evidence pending

May 2019

41

All costs associated with the provision of the
land charges service should be determined for
a one-year period, including both direct and
indirect costs. This information should be
collated and compared to the total number of
searches provided over a one-year period to
determine an approximate cost per search.
This should be compared to previous years to
determine how the level of requests will
impact on the expenditure to determine the
fixed and variable costs, to allow for the costs
to be extrapolated to ensure that they are in
line with projections for future requests. The
information should be reviewed annually to
ensure it remains a true reflection of costs.

December 2019
June 2020
TBC

High
A review should be undertaken to identify the
benefits, costs and risks associated with offering
a personal search service undertaken by Council
officers. This review should include the costs to
the service and the possible implications should
incorrect data be supplied, as well as whether
the decision is in line with Council objectives.
Alternatives should also be explored, such as
offering the self-service at other Council buildings and
benchmarking against other Councils to identify best
practice.

Planning support and land charges
manager
Group manager – validation and fast
track
March 2019
May 2019
December 2019
June 2020

36

We were advised by the Planning Support & Local Land Charges Manager
that the team currently have to offer the personal service, but this will
depart Southwark once they fully transfer the land charge register to the
HM Land Registry team in 2023.
Evidence pending

Recommendation and Priority Level
The reasoning behind the decision should be
documented and reviewed on a regular basis.

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

TBC

Medium
The Council should undertake a review to confirm the
anticipated financial loss as a result of the transition of
local land charges to Land Registry. Appropriate steps
should be taken to determine how this loss will be
offset by the Council, to ensure appropriate costsavings measures will be implemented in a timely
manner.
Medium

Planning support and land charges
manager
Group manager – validation and fast
track
March 2019

We were advised by the Planning Support & Local Land Charges Manager
that the cost and loss of the Register has been reported to Finance, the
loss is approximately £ 48,000 in income. This will be recovered by a
small increase in the Con 29 charges once the register is transferred.
Evidence pending

May 2019
December 2019
June 2020
TBC

Finance and Governance Department

The Council should undertake an assessment of the
risks that those who act on its behalf may criminally
facilitate tax evasion. Given the size of the workforce
at the Council, it is not practical to undertake a risk
assessment for all the 'associated persons' individually.
Therefore, a risk assessment should be carried out and
documented based on the job roles. Staff that are
directly involved in a finance role may have a higher
chance of committing an offence than the staff
associated with, for example, the operational
management of housing stock.
a) The Criminal Finances Act 2017 does not envisage
that all employees require a detailed understanding of
the UK tax rules, however training should equip them
to understand the scope of this offence and the

Senior Investigation Officer
December 2021
January 2022

We were advised by the Senior Investigation Officer that the review of
this risk has been delayed until January 2022. The peer-to-peer review of
similar activities across other boroughs results will be incorporated into
Risk profile and training module. The Government and HMRC guidelines
will be included in training module.
The use of ADAPT training is likely to delay roll out of training. An
alternative option will be to use Microsoft Sway as a means of
refreshing/training 270 identified staff.

Senior Investigation Officer
December 2021
TBC

37

We were advised by the Senior Investigation Officer that this has been
delayed and there is no current training module available. HR could
provide accessing to training module without additional cost. AFS staff

42

2020-21 – Anti-Facilitation Tax Evasion

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

associated risks, without needing to understand the
underlying tax law.

trained on ADAPT Learning Pool training platform to build new training
material. In addition to staff abstraction due to Covid-19 infection.

b) Training should be provided to all staff involved in a
finance function such as raising or approving a
purchase order or an invoice.

The proposed pilot due for release in December 2022.
The use of ADAPT training is likely to delay roll out of training. An
alternative option will be to use Microsoft Sway as a means of
refreshing/training 270 identified staff.

Housing and Modernisation Department
2019-20 Materials
SBS Business Service Manager

The council should seek to confirm the number of
apprenticeship and work experience slots and compare
these against an expected standard. Evidence should
also be received detailing that staff are paid the
London Living on a quarterly basis to ensure the
contractor is meeting its requirements under the Fairer
Future Procurement strategy.

October 2021

April 2021

January 2022

We were advised that the supply chain partners will be working with
Southwark Works, which is a free employment support service for anyone
living within the London borough of Southwark. They are going to
promote and advertise x2 work placements which will be placed at the
Peckham branch of Travis Perkins. The advertisements will go out in
February 2022.

February 2022

Medium
2020-21 Housing Application and Allocations
The Council should ensure that the identity document
scanners are functional and are used to confirm the
legitimacy of the identity documents submitted by the
applicants. If it is agreed by the Council that the
document scanners will not be useful due to the
restrictions under GDPR, alternative arrangements
should be identified and put in place to detect forged
identity documents.

Acting Head of Housing Solutions
September 2021
April 2022

Medium

38

We were advised that the Fraud and Verification team are now leading on
the procurement of a new verification system. Initial tendering is taking
place and a decision will likely take place in Spring 2022.

43

Where actions are raised in relation to social value,
these should be included within the agreed actions and
monitored by the Strategic Core Group.

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

2020-21 Software Asset Management
i)Management should put in place a defined Software
Asset Management Policy that documents the Council’s
procedures for the management of software, which
should include, but not be limited to:

Head of IT Applications
March 2022
June 2022

We were advised by the Head of IT Applications that a new Head of
Architecture role has been appointed and significant work has been done
to establish a Technical Design Authority. This authority will introduce
and manage the Software Asset Management policy.

• The procedures for the management of different
types of software, including standard software, nonstandard software and line of business software
• The procedures for the management of software
assets throughout their lifecycle, including
procurement, configuration, deployment,
redeployment and decommissioning
• The procedures for managing the software asset
inventory, including software installation and
registration and software removal

44

• The arrangements for the transfer of licences when
required
• The roles and responsibilities of members of staff,
including, but not being limited to, software misuse
• The requirement for software audits to be performed
on a regular basis, including the use of any appropriate
audit tools.
ii)The defined policy or procedure should be formally
approved and communicated to members of staff and
should be subject to regular review with a version
control in place.
Medium
i)Management should carry out an exercise for
collecting details and licensing information relating to

Head of IT Applications
June 2021

39

We were vised by the Head of IT Applications that all Applications in the
Applications Register now have an assigned business owner and the
Register has been expanded to allow for licence information to be
recorded. In addition, items in the register have been reviewed, and a

Recommendation and Priority Level
the Council’s IT applications and update the Council’s
application register as necessary. This should include:

Manager Responsible & Due Date
September 2022

• Business owners assigned to the 53% of applications
that do not currently have a business owner

Latest Implementation Status
facility has been put in place to record when a review last took place.
More work is needed to ensure the completion of licencing information,
as well as records for systems held outside central IT, particularly in
ChAd.

• Software version number and the date it was last
upgraded
• Licencing information, including license type,
product keys, location of the installation CD and expiry
date.

45

ii)Arrangements should be put in place for the
application register to be reviewed on a more regular
basis, including the requirement for application owners
to report to the Head of IT Applications throughout the
year with any corresponding changes documented in
the register. This process should also be adopted by
services who own their applications when not managed
by the central IT application team.
Alternatively, management should perform a cost
benefit analysis for commissioning an automated
software asset management tool to assist with
software management.
Medium
i)The Council should put a process in place whereby
the procurement of any software application requires
approval from central IT or the Head of IT
Applications. This requirement should be formally
defined and documented in the Council’s procurement
guidelines.

Head of IT Applications

ii)The Council should consider adopting best practice
by establishing a Software Advisory Board for steering
the identification and approval of ad-hoc applications
and engaging with service areas as to whether they are

ii)September 2021

i)July 2021

We were vised by the Head of IT Applications that the precedent has
been established where an IT concurrent has now been included on
Gateway Reports where there is a significant IT Applications component,
but this is yet to be formally defined and documented in the procurement
guidelines

Sept 2022

September 2022

40

A Head of Architecture role has been appointed and a Technical Design
Authority is being established with will act as the Software Advisory Board
for technical considerations. A Portfolio Review Board has been
established which additionally be able to consider and advise on cost
implications

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

needed considering cost implications and technical
support.
Medium
Children and Adult’s Services Department
2019-20 – Mental Health
1) Officers should ensure that an annual financial
assessment is recorded on Mosaic for clients paying for
care and that reasons are given when clients do not
pay – spot checks should be made to verify this.

1) Service Development Manager
(Personal Budgets and Client Finance)

2) Service Development Manager
(Personal Budgets and Client Finance)

3) If necessary, a further home visit should be
completed to follow up on this to identify if there are
any reasons why the service user has not returned the
required documentation.

3) Service Development Manager
(Personal Budget and Client Finance)

1)

All service users’ client contributions are reviewed on a yearly
basis as part of the “financial assessment batch” uplift or as part
of a specific review.

2)

The “Charging and Collections” report on Mosaic shows what
service users are receiving chargeable services and what service
users have a financial assessment. The “Personal Budgets and
Client Finance Service” is working with “Mental Health, Learning
Disabilities and All Age Disabilities (“MH, LD, AAD”)” to ensure
that, where applicable, mental health service users are
financially assessed. This work will review the list of current
mental health service users who are receiving services from the
Council but who are not receiving reablement services or
services under Section 117 of the Mental Health Act 1983. It is
this smaller cohort of mental health service-users that should be
assessed financially assessed. A further meeting with MH is
planned for 26 Jan 2022.

3)

If needed, and subject to an appropriate risk assessment being
carried out, the Charging Team in the Personal Budgets and
Client Finance Service can carry out home visits in conjunction
with “MH, LD and AAD”.

January 2022

High

Evidence pending

41

46

2) Reporting should be completed on a monthly basis
highlighting those service users who have been
provided with financial assessment documentation but
who have not returned this, and they should be
requested to provide this.

We were advised by the Service Development Manager that:

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

1) Clear responsibilities in relation to monitoring
should be provided to staff by the Team Manager with
associated training to ensure they are aware of their
requirements and how to complete their role
effectively.

Service Development Manager (Personal
Budget and Client Finance)

We were advised by the Service Development Manager that:
1) The monitoring of whether financial assessments have been
carried out is led by the Charging Team in the Personal Budgets
and Client Finance Service in conjunction with “MH, LD and
AAD”. The “Charging and Collections” report on Mosaic shows
what service users are receiving chargeable services and what
service users have a financial assessment. This report will be
used to support monitoring.

2) Monitoring should be completed in accordance with
team procedures and documented within Mosaic.
3) Spot checks should be completed by management to
confirm that monitoring is being carried out as
required.

2)

High

The Personal Budgets and Client Finance Service is monitoring
the number of Adult Social Care service-users who are receiving
chargeable services but who have not had a financial assessment
Evidence seen

3)

Service Development Manager
(Personal Budget and Client Finance)

2) Quarterly spot checks should be completed by team
management of cases which have been referred to the
placements team to ensure that direct payments have
been amended in a timely manner in accordance with
the above performance target.

2)

Medium

Performance monitoring is carried out by the Placements Team 2
in the Personal Budgets and Client Finance Service for “purchase
service steps” that are still open. There is no reporting (as yet)
for how quickly purchasing steps are turned around, but the
Personal Budgets and Client Finance Service is looking to
introduce this in for 2022/23. Sometimes Mosaic “purchasing
requests” are incomplete so referral is sent back. Assuming
information is all there, steps can be turned around in three
working days. Individual performance management of staff
members to see what is still open on staff members’ desktops.
Evidence pending

42

47

1) Internal performance targets should be set to
confirm how long the placements team has to action
any information received from the social worker to
amend a direct payment, following a notification of a
change in package.

The Personal Budgets and Client Finance Service will review the
list of service users who have not had a financial assessment and
will segment via service-user type to identify the “MH, LD and
AAD” service-users.
We were advised by the Service Development Manager that:
1) A formal target of three working days for turning around direct
payments “purchasing steps” will be introduced for 2022/23. If
all the information is submitted correctly, “Purchasing service”
steps for direct payment changes are typically reviewed within
24 hours and allocated within 24 hours.

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

2020/21 – CAS11 Direct Payments
(i) Staff should be reminded of the necessity to ensure
that appropriate contract documentation is complete
and signed off.
(ii) The direct payments team should not issue a direct
payment until they have checked that a signed
agreement is in place.
Medium
The monitoring forms currently in place should be
extended to include a check that relevant annual
reviews are completed, recorded and communicated to
the operational adult social care teams.
Medium

(ii) Monitoring should be completed regularly in line
with relevant policies and where problems are
identified, such as build-up of surpluses, remedial
action should be implemented in a timely manner and
monitored monthly.

(Personal Budget and Client Finance)
August 2021
November 2021

We were advised that:
(i) Ensuring that a signed agreement is received before a direct payment
is step up is now part of the Placements Team 2’s procedure. The direct
payment process map on “TriX”, the Adult Social Care’s policies and
procedures repository, will be updated.

March 2022
Service Development Manager
(Personal Budget and Client Finance)

We were advised that the direct payments Mosaic monitoring form is still
in development and will be in place by February 2022.

August 2021
February 2022
Service Development Manager
(Personal Budget and Client Finance)
August 2021
December 2021
TBC

(iii) For self/individual managed direct payments, the
return of the client information packs should be
monitored to ensure that information is received, and
the reviews can then be completed. Where the return
of the information is delayed, matters should be
escalated in line with the relevant procedures and
suspension considered if appropriate.

43

We were advised by the Service Development Manager that:
iv) The dates are to be added to the monitoring form. In the meantime,
a spreadsheet is maintained to show when a direct payment recipient had
his/her most recent review and when next review is due (see screen shot
in email).

48

(i) Staff should be reminded of the correct process for
completing monitoring forms, specifically with regard
to third party payments where there is a requirement
to check funds are being appropriately utilised.

Service Development Manager

Recommendation and Priority Level

Manager Responsible & Due Date

Latest Implementation Status

(iv) The direct payment team should determine
whether it is possible to run a schedule report on a
regular basis on Mosaic to capture relevant review
dates. Should this not be possible, manual records
should be kept on a spreadsheet indicating when the
next review should take place and spot checks should
be completed by management to ensure reviews are
being completed.
Medium

49

44

APPENDIX 1
OPINION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION
Level of
Audit
Assurance

Design Opinion
Recommendation made

Priority
Level

Findings from review
Manager
Due Date
Responsible

Effectiveness Opinion
Current Progress
Trust
No,
or Comments:
only minor, exceptions
found in testing of the
IA Comments:
procedures
and controls.
Trust Comments:

There is a sound system of
internal control designed to
achieve system objectives.

Moderate

In the main, there are appropriate
procedures and controls in place to
mitigate the key risks reviewed
albeit with some that are not
fully effective.

Limited

A number of significant gaps
identified in the procedures and
controls in key areas. Where
practical, efforts should be made to
address in-year.

Generally a sound system of
A small number of exceptions
IA Comments:
internal control designed to
found in testing of the
Trust Comments:
achieve system objectives with procedures and controls.
some exceptions.
IA Comments:
Trust Comments:
System of internal controls is
A number of reoccurring
IA Comments:
weakened with system
exceptions
found in testing of
objectives at risk of not being
the procedures and controls.
achieved.
Where practical, efforts should
be made to address inyear.

The controls that are in place are being
consistently applied.

Evidence of non compliance with some
controls, that may put some of the system
objectives at risk.

Non-compliance with key procedures and
controls places the system objectives at risk.

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION
No

For all risk areas there are significant Poor system of internal control. Due to absence of effective
Non compliance and/or compliance with
gaps in the procedures and controls.
controls and procedures, no
inadequate controls.
Failure to address in-year affects the
reliance can be placed on their
quality of the organisation’s overall
operation. Failure to address
internal control framework.
in-year affects the quality of
the organisation’s overall
internal control
framework.

45

50

Substantial Appropriate procedures and controls
in place to mitigate the key risks.

Findings from review

APPENDIX 2
Local Government Sector Update
SECTOR UPDATE
Audit

Recommendation made

Priority
Level

Manager
Responsible

Due Date

Current Progress

Our quarterly Local Government briefing summarises recent publications and emerging issues relevant to Local Authorities that may be of interest to
Trust Comments:
members of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. It is intended to provide a snapshot of current.
FINANCE

IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

IASAB Guidance to Internal Auditors

IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

IA Comments:

The guidance has advised audit committee members on the following key steps:
- Advise the Audit committee on changes to the internal audit plan
- Where in house internal audit staff are reassigned to undertake consultancy roles, they should be made aware of the responsibilities
- Where internal audit staff are diverted into operational roles it should be made clear that for the duration that staff are not operating as
internal auditors

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

BDO provide regular updates to the audit committee on changes to the audit plan. However, the above guidance does not have a direct impact on BDO
as we are outsourced providers and not being diverted into in-house roles.
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/internal-audit-documentation/conformance-with-psias-during-the-pandemic
District Council proposes U-turn on Council tax rise after government boost
Mansfield District Council’s cabinet said in October it wanted to increase its portion of council tax by 1.99% in 2022-23, which would have raised
£115,000 of extra revenue.
But the one-year local government settlement in December confirmed the authority would receive an additional £401,000 of grants, and the cabinet
now wants to reverse its original plans.
46

51

The Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board (IASAB) has produced guidance to internal auditors on maintaining conformance with the UK Public Sector
IA Comments:
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) during the pandemic. CIPFA has endorsed the guidance which also has the support of the other UK Relevant Internal
Trust Comments:
Audit Standard Setters.

“This would be good news for Mansfield residents, many of whom continue to be affected by the pandemic,” said corporate and finance portfolio holder
Craig Whitby.
“Our original decision to propose an increase was not an easy one to make for this reason but was necessary based on the information we had at the
time.”
The change also means the cabinet is proposing to reduce the use of earmarked reserves for 2022-23 from £261,500 to £100,000.

Priority
Manager
Due Date
Current Progress
Level
Responsible
A proposed 2% increase to fees and charges and a revenue-raising trade glass collection service will still be included in the budget, although other
Trust Comments:
proposed further charge increases will no longer go ahead.
Audit

Recommendation made

IA Comments:
The council will still have a savings target of £1.08m, although this is nearly £300m
less than the pre-settlement plans.
Trust Comments:

The budget proposals will be agreed by the cabinet on 17 January and discussed
at a full council meeting on 26 January.
IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/01/district-council-proposes-u-turn-council-tax-rise-after-government-boost
Councils in £450m ‘truck cartels’ compensation challenge

IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

The authorities’ claim that the collusion meant “materially higher” costs for leasing and purchasing of heavy good vehicles used for refuse collection,
street cleaning, waste disposal as well as contracts for such services that relied on the use of trucks.
Written defences and replies were submitted to the High Court in December, with disclosures and witness statements set to be filed next, but PF
understands progress on the case is likely to progress slow due to a courts backlog caused by Covid-19.
Richard Pike, partner at law firm Constantine Cannon, which is representing the councils, said: “In reality, we will probably see the case stayed for
period, because there are a number of other related cases ahead of us.
“The hope is that they [the manufacturers] will settle sooner rather than later. When the cases ahead of us are determined or settled that will no
doubt have an impact on our case as well.”

47

52

IA Comments:
More than 100 local authorities will press ahead with a High Court claim for hundreds
of millions of pounds in compensation from truck manufacturers
which the European Commission ruled had colluded to fix prices.
The group of councils launched the challenge in November 2020 against 15 truck companies, after the European Commission found in 2016, they had
colluded between 1997 and 2011 to fix prices.

Councils are requesting close to £450m in damages, which consists of £240m in overcharged costs during the 14-year period, capped at 26% of the value
of the purchases under EU law, according to documents seem by PF.
Authorities are claiming a further £155m stemming from the impact prices in the wider market, as well as £60m resulting from permanently increased
costs.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/01/councils-ps450m-truck-cartels-compensation-challenge
Priority
Government
toRecommendation
extend additional
audit funding
Audit
made
Level

Manager
Responsible

Due Date

Current Progress

Trust
Comments:
Local authorities in England are set to receive £45m over the next three years,
alongside
extended accounts deadlines, to help improve the timeliness
of local audit.
IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

In December 2020, the government allocated £15m to councils to help fund additional costs of audits, due to changes in accounting requirements in
2021-22, following the recommendations of the Redmond Review.
IA Comments:
Trust Comments:
Trust Comments:

The document said: “This will provide local bodies with the certainty that they will be supported to implement the changes needed to respond to new
IA Comments:
auditing requirements and Redmond’s recommendations.”

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

The government has also proposed extending the deadline for 2021-22 accounts to November 2022, after only 9% were filed on time in 2020-21.
Additionally, the government intends to move the deadline for each year’s accounts to 30 September, up until 2027-28, to give auditors and councils
more time, the guidance said.
CIPFA will also produce new guidance in April, emphasising the role of audit committees in the preparation of accounts, alongside a new local audit
training diploma for practitioners.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/12/government-extend-additional-audit-funding
Omicron grant boost targeted towards highest-spending councils
English councils which have distributed highest amounts to businesses through the Covid-19 Additional Restrictions Grant scheme will get the largest
allocations from a £100m.

48

53

The government confirmed in a guidance document that funding will be extended to help cover additional costs over the Spending Review period up
to 2024-25.
IA Comments:

The ARG scheme was introduced in October 2020, and topped up twice earlier this year, with previous rounds being allocated to councils on a perhead-of-population basis.
The new top-up has been announced as part of a new £1bn package announced yesterday in response to a self-imposed lockdown by much of the
population as the Omicron variant spreads.
A government statement said: “Local authorities will have discretion to allocate this funding to businesses most in need.
Priority
Manager that have distributed the most of their existing allocation.”
“The
ARG top up
will be prioritised
for those
local authorities
Audit
Recommendation
made
Due Date
Current Progress
Level

Responsible

Trustthat
Comments:
It said that, in addition, councils still have £250m of previously allocated funding
remains unspent.

In addition to the ARG, the government announced:

IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

- £683m in targeted grants for hospitality and leisure businesses in England; IA Comments:
- £30 million for Culture Recovery Fund;
- a further allocation of £154m in Barnett funding for devolved nations;

Trust Comments:
IA Comments:
Trust Comments:

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

Responding to package announcement, Cllr Shaun Davies, Chair of the Local Government Association’s Resources Board, said: “We know these grants
have been a vital lifeline to businesses and councils will work hard to get this new government funding out to businesses.”
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/12/omicron-grant-boost-targeted-towards-highest-spending-councils
Settlement allocation ‘clear indication of levelling-up’
The allocation of the local government settlement, steering more funding to deprived councils, is a signal of the government’s intentions on 'levelling
up', according to experts.
The settlement will see the most deprived local authorities in England receive a real-terms funding increase of 4.9% in 2022-23, compared with a 3.8%
rise for the least deprived councils, according to analysis from the Institute for Fiscal Studies.
This funding increase for poorer authorities is mainly attributed to the one-off £822m services grant, which used an older funding formula to target
support based on a council’s ability to raise income.

49

54

IA Comments:
- the reintroduction of a scheme to reimburse small and medium sized employers
for up to two weeks per employee for absences.

David Phillips, associate director at the IFS told PF: “In contrast to recent years, councils in poorer areas are projected to see a big increase in their
core funding over authorities in more affluent areas.
“That is largely down to the way the government has allocated the 2022-23 services grant.”
Dan Bates, finance specialist at local government advisors LG Improve, told PF that the grant allocation “provides the clearest clue as to government’s
future priorities”.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/2021/12/settlement-allocation-clear-indication-levelling
Priority
Manager
Level
Responsible
Council spending on transport soars through Covid-19
Audit

Recommendation made

Due Date

Current Progress
Trust Comments:

English councils' net spending on highways and transport more than doubled last year, due to a reduction in income caused by Covid-19, according to
IA Comments:
outturn figures.
Trust Comments:

Councils spent £7.9bn on highways and transport services in 2020-21, a £4.1bn
increase on the £3.7bn reported in 2019-20, the highest year-on-year
IA Comments:
service spending rise, according to provision outturn data published by the government.
Trust Comments:

IA Comments:
The report said: “This was also the main cause for the increase across other authorities
as well as lower income from off-street parking.

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

“Local authorities with toll bridge or tunnel crossings also reported lower fee income from these.”
Overall, local authorities’ total net service spending was £106.3bn in 2020-21, up 10.6% in real terms compared to 2019-20, which resulted from
additional pandemic spending, the report said.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/12/council-spending-transport-soars-through-covid-19
Sector voices disappointment over ‘stop-gap’ local government settlement
Local authorities are set to receive a share of a one-off £822m services grant in 2022-23, to help meet service demands, as part of a single-year
provisional local government settlement announced on Thursday.
The un-ringfenced grant will go to all local authorities in England, to help manage services pressures including funding to cover the increase in
employer national insurance contributions, a consultation published alongside the settlement said.

50

55

The majority of the rise (£3.3bn) was attributed to the Greater London Authority
as fare income drastically reduced on Transport for London due to
IA Comments:
Covid-19 restrictions, the report added.
Trust Comments:

The single-year settlement would give the government the time to assess how it will share out resources fairly in future years, the consultation said.
Communities secretary Michael Gove said in a written ministerial statement: “In outlining these proposals, my priority is to provide stability in the
immediate term so I can work closely with local government and other partners on options to update our assessment of local authority needs and
resources.”
Overall, the government said the settlement would provide a real-terms spending power increase of 4% on 2021-22, which includes inflationary rises
to core grants and assumes 2% council tax rises across the board.
Priority
Manager
Due Date
Current Progress
Level
Responsible
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/12/sector-voices-disappointment-over-stop-gap-local-government-settlement
Audit

Recommendation made

Trust Comments:

Environment
Efficient borrowing: Using PWLB borrowing to reduce climate emissions

IA Comments:
Trust Comments:
IA Comments:

Loans from the Public Works Loan Board helped one UK local authority reduceTrust
climate
emissions in schools.
Comments:
In 2012, Cambridgeshire County Council adopted an energy efficiency programme,
IA Comments:
combining borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board with a £1.2m
Trust Comments:
grant from the EU’s Intelligent Energy Europe programme.

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

The Mobilising Local Energy Investment scheme was initially aimed at reducing carbon emissions in schools. “We have about 240 schools, and those
were the largest carbon emitters we had on our portfolio at that time,” French adds.
Schools in the county with academy status have control over their own decision-making processes, so the council had to approach governing bodies
with work proposals. “We offered to install solar panels, LED lighting, new boilers and other energy-saving incentives, with debt serviced by the money
saved on bills,” French says.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/case-study/2021/10/efficient-borrowing-using-pwlb-borrowing-reduce-climate-emissions
HOUSING
‘Key amnesty’ launched to reclaim illegally used council housing

51

56

IA Comments:
“The grant was effectively revenue funding to help us design and develop energy
efficiency projects all the way up to procurement stage,” says Sheryl
French, assistant director of climate change and energy services at the council.

A London council has begun a ‘key amnesty’ aiming to reduce tenancy fraud, promising “no questions asked” of those who have been using council
homes illegally.
Hillingdon Council said tenancy fraud, which includes illegal subletting, wrongful succession, fraudulent ‘right to buy’ applications, lying about tenancy
agreements or housing applications and failures to disclose changed circumstances, costs “hundreds and thousands of pounds each year”.
During the amnesty, which will last from Monday 8 November to Friday 17 December, anyone can hand in keys to the council’s civic centre and only
need to fill in a form confirming details of the property and that it is empty.
Priority
Manager
Due Date
Current Progress
Level
Responsible
No one who hands in keys during this time will face legal action, the council said.
Trust Comments:
Audit

Recommendation made

“With an already huge demand for social housing, it’s not right for properties to be sitting empty because the tenant moved in with a partner, is living
IA Comments:
somewhere else or making money by illegally subletting their council property,”
said council member for finance Martin Goddard.
Trust Comments:

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/11/key-amnesty-launched-reclaim-illegally-used-council-housing
IA Comments:
‘Urgent case’ for more social rented homes in government housing plans

Trust Comments:

Comments:
Gavin Smart, chief executive of the Chartered Institute of Housing, said theIA£8.6bn
of funding allocated on Tuesday was welcome but not focused
enough on social homes.

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

The government said it would build nearly 120,000 homes with the money, including “57,000 for ownership, 29,600 for social rent and 6,250 affordable
rural homes” with no details about the rest.
“The impact of the pandemic means even more households are struggling to meet rent and other costs of living, let alone being able to save for home
ownership in the near future,” said Smart.
He said the social rented homes are “really welcome”, but said “there is still an urgent case for a greater level of investment to deliver more”.
Social rented homes are typically available at 50-60% of market prices, and generally provide tenants more security than those owned by private
landlords.
Smart said the announcement is “in line with [the government’s] investment ambitions, with half of the funding for the development of lower cost
home ownership for first-time buyers”.
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2021/08/urgent-case-more-social-rented-homes-government-housing-plans
52

57

IA Comments:

Government plans to spend £8.6bn building affordable homes still leave a large
unaddressed
Trust
Comments: need for social housing, an expert has warned.

FOR MORE INFORMATION:
Greg Rubins
Partner, Public Sector
0238 088 1892 (DDI)
Mobile: 07710 703441
greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general
terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied
upon to cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon
the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice.
Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or
assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not
taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision
based on it.

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern
Ireland, is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent
member firms.
© 2019 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

58

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent
member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at our registered
office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by
the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.

59

Item No.
9.

Classification:
Open

Date
7 February 2022

Agenda Item 9
Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee

Report title:

Annual report on corporate risk and insurance 2021-22

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION
1. That the audit, governance and standards committee note the annual report on corporate
risk and insurance.
2. That the audit, governance and standards committee reviews the current corporate risk
register and provides comments to officers for their consideration prior to the publication of
the register by the Strategic Director of Finance and Governance.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3. This report provides an annual report on the council’s key risk register. The key corporate
risks were last reported to the committee in June 2021. This report provides an annual
update.
4. This report also summarises the corporate risk management and insurance arrangements.
5. In addition also reported are details of the council’s risk profile and risk categories.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Overview
6. The main purposes of the council’s corporate risk management process are :






To set out the most significant risks to the council in the context of multiple risks
identified and managed within each department.
Where appropriate, to consolidate common risks issues especially where
cumulatively they may amount to a higher risk rating
To ensure that single risks that may act to impact across all council services are
recorded (e.g. cyber security).
To enable risks to be effectively managed to ensure that the council meets its
corporate and business objectives; and
To alert the council to new or increasing risks that may impact on the council’s ability
to serve its residents and wider community

7. The council’s corporate risk register is prepared following joint assessment by officers of all
departmental risks. Given the range of services provided by the council, these lists are long
and detailed and will be rated from low to high. Many risks are of a very specific nature and
are unlikely to be translated directly on to the corporate risk register. However, they may be
consolidated into corporate risks in so far that cumulatively they create a higher risk to the
council (e.g. loss of or reduction in funding sources; additional demand pressures; etc.).

1

60

8. In the process of preparing the corporate risk register, concentration is placed upon
moderation of risk ratings to ensure some consistency across the council and to confirm that
appropriate mitigations are in place to manage the risk, as far as that is possible.
Risk Categories
9. The council uses the following risk categories to capture risk:







Economic
delivery)
Financial
Reputational
Staffing & Culture
Operational
Legal & Regulatory

(e.g. credit crunch impacting on service
(e.g. budgetary constraints)
(e.g. failures of service delivery which hit the press)
(e.g. recruitment & retention)
(e.g. services not being delivered)
(e.g. not complying with a statutory duty)

10. The 2022 split of number of risks by risk category is displayed in the table below. The
percentage of legal and regulatory risks has increased slightly since last year. The other
categories remain at a consistent level compared with the percentages last reported.
Risk Category
Economic
Financial
Reputational
Staffing & Culture
Operational
Legal & Regulatory

Percentage (%) May 2021
5
20
9
10
34
22

Percentage (%) Jan 2022
7
18
7
8
29
31

Corporate Risk Register
11. Each department has a departmental risk register. These are updated via the network of
departmental risk champions who work with each departmental senior management team to
maintain a current risk register. Each risk register records the risk, assessment score,
ownership and key controls and action plans to manage each risk.
12. Many departmental risks represent a core component of service delivery and therefore will
form part of the day to day performance management of the department.
13. Each risk requires mitigations. These outline the current controls in place to manage the risk
and identifies, where necessary, any further controls needed to reduce the risk.
14. These individual risk registers are stored on the council’s risk management software system
that are used to build the corporate risk register.
15. The departmental risk champions supported by the corporate risk and insurance manager
collectively validate the individual departmental risk registers and carry out a review and
aggregation exercise to identify the key risks facing the council as a whole. This base
exercise was recently repeated and the corporate risk register updated as appropriate and
reviewed at Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in June 2021.

2

61

16. The risks on the corporate risk register have been revised and consolidated where
appropriate since the key corporate risks were last reported to the committee. The key
corporate risks also align with the unique challenges of the post pandemic era. The
corporate risk register has also been checked against the council’s most recent annual
governance statement to ensure coverage of appropriate areas.
17. The table below provides a breakdown of the number of risks (by their risk score range)
across all council departments.
Risk Assessment

Score Range

Red
Amber
Yellow
Green

76 - 100
37 - 75
22 - 36
1 - 21

Number of Risks
May 2021
Jan 2022
19
12
54
57
51
51
29
31

18. The total number of risks in the database is currently 151 which is a very slight decrease in
the number of risks reported in 2021, which were 153.
19. Work is ongoing within departments on reviewing their risk registers. The quarterly risk
champion meetings for the past year have continued to focus on a theme at each meeting
where possible, these being, information governance and fraud. The aim of this was to build
relationships across the council and explore areas not previously looked at in depth or, in the
case of fraud, revisit an area with a different focus. This will continue in 2022 and will revisit
other areas previously considered.
20. The benchmarking exercise was repeated comparing Southwark’s corporate risk register
with all other London Borough’s (plus the City of London) looking at the register as a whole
but focussing specifically on how financial and climate change risks were captured. No
information could be found for 10 Boroughs but where it was available for the rest,
Southwark’s register is broadly in line with the risks captured.
Key corporate risks
21. As set out above, following a review and validation of the combined departmental risk
registers and an aggregation exercise, the top risks across the council have been identified.
These top risks are attached in appendix 1.
22. The top risks are generally those that have been assessed as amber or red and which
appear in more than one departmental risk register, and are therefore relevant to more than
one department. These top risks are those risks which often require most proactive
management to ensure that all appropriate mitigation actions have been considered and are
being implemented as far as possible.
23. In advance of reporting to the audit, governance and standards committee, these have been
reported to the corporate governance panel.
Insurance Overview
24. The council purchases a number of different insurance policies to help protect the council
against the potential financial loss resulting from a catastrophic insurable event. The council
self-insures an element of this, and self insurance levels vary depending on the types of
insurances.

3

62

25. Although it is not legally required to hold insurances other than fidelity guarantee insurance
(the details of this insurance are explained in the appendix 2), in line with prudent financial
management and in line with other local authorities, the council does purchase various
liability insurances and property (asset) related insurances.
26. Under the council’s financial standing orders, all insurance decisions are the responsibility of
the Strategic Director of Finance and Governance. However, the council has limited control
over its insurance framework as the public sector insurance market is prescriptive. Levels of
cover, scope of cover and excess levels are dictated by what is available in a limited market.
Insurance Cover
27. The council’s insurances fall into two main categories; property policies and liability policies:
 Property policies provide cover for the loss or damage to council assets
 Liability policies protect the council against financial exposure resulting from
individuals or organisations making a claim for loss or injury as a result of council
activities
28. During the period 1 May 2021 to the 26 January 2022, there were 322 new public liability
insurance claims made against the council, these were split as follows:
Damage to third party property
201
Personal Injury
116
Employee
4
Official’s Indemnity
1
29. 34 claims were made against property policies in the same period and these all related to
the motor fleet under the motor insurance cover.
Policy Implications
30. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.
Community Impact Statement
31. This report is not considered to have direct impact on local people and communities;
however the management of risk is key to the successful achievement of the council’s
objectives.
Resource Implications
32. This report is not considered to have direct impact on resource implications, although the
management of risk is a part of the effective management of resources.
Consultation
33. Consultation has not been undertaken.
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
34. None required.

4

63

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
None

Held At

Contact

APPENDICES
No.
1
2

Title
The Key Corporate Risks as at January 2022
Insurances – summary as at January 2022

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
Report Author Laura Sandy
Version Final
Dated 27 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought Comments included
Director of Law and Governance
No
No
Strategic Director of Finance
Yes
Yes
and Governance
List other officers here
N/A
N/A
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
27 January 2022

5

64

APPENDIX 1 – Corporate Risks and High Level Mitigations as at January 2022
Risk
Post-Pandemic Recovery

Mitigation

Slow or sporadic post pandemic economic
recovery associated with uncertain government
financial support to local authorities and strain
on the welfare system leads to increased levels
of unemployment and other societal
fragmentation; consequentially, increased
demand for council services such as social
care, welfare and emergency support and
housing results in potential for conflicting
demands on funding available.










Continual lobbying of government to meet
needs created by pandemic and the
aftermath.
Continued close monitoring of impacts on
council services and local economy
Pan London engagement to communicate
with government, the voluntary sector and
other agencies
Delivery, implementation and monitoring
of economic renewal plan
Embedding of Southwark Stands Together
programme and related cohesion work to
ensure fair and balanced community
recovery
Engagement of senior managers with
regional South East London councils ICS
Maintenance of and appropriate allocation
of earmarked council reserves to support
any shortfalls in the short term

Cyber Security, IT, Data and Information
Management

Total or partial loss of significant core business
systems, inadequate data security and the
system becoming unfit to meet business needs
results in impaired service delivery and
performance and impacts on resident
satisfaction impacting on the reputation of the
council and staff productivity and morale.












6

Robust system back-up, firewall, anti virus
and cyber security arrangements in place
through council’s IT team and the
managed IT shared service
Migration of software solutions to hosted
managed services in the cloud
Appropriate contractual assurance for both
cloud based and hosted services
Ensure all hardware and software is
supported for security updates
Regular maintenance and update of
disaster recovery and business continuity
plans
IT capital improvement programme to
continue to bring infrastructure up to an
efficient and current standard
Further development of IT shared services
arrangements with Brent and Lewisham
Effective policies, guidance, training and
controls to ensure staff compliance
Robust information governance
arrangements including well defined Data
Protection Officer and Senior Information
Risk Owner responsibilities
Training and awareness of staff both
ongoing and through induction

65

Acute Socio-Economic Factors
Failure or lack of capacity to react to wider
economic and socio-economic trends, including
recession, unemployment and potential impact
on levels of homelessness, market forces (e.g.
London housing market), international and
domestic migration, post Brexit developments
and inflation, that creates either funding
shortfalls or compromises the delivery of council
services.









Flexible Medium Term Financial Strategy,
reviewed regularly
Capital programme subject to continual
review and update to ensure delivery of
council priorities
Active but flexible social regeneration,
transformation and development
programmes
Active local economy engagement to
communicate issues and to help mitigate
risks to business and employment
Delivery, implementation and monitoring
of economic renewal plan
Continue to generate capital receipts to
support capital programme and other new
projects
Regular update of fees and charges and
review of new income generating schemes
to help mitigate financial impacts and risk
of cuts

Welfare Reform
Changes to the welfare support system create
direct and indirect financial pressures on the
council through increased demand for all
services to those affected by the changes
creating the potential for capacity and resource
shortfalls.







Responsive forecasting and modelling to
inform financial planning assumptions
Working with external stakeholders and
the voluntary sector to maximise available
support from all sources
Additional support targeted at those most
at risk
Data and information management to help
inform options analysis and decision
taking
Maintenance of and appropriate allocation
of earmarked council reserves to support
any shortfalls in the short term

Medium Term Financial Planning
The continued uncertainty regarding local
government funding beyond 2022-23 presents
the council with significant challenges in
presenting balanced medium term financial
strategies and in preparing and presenting
longer term budget options which reflect the
council’s priorities and ambitions and safeguard
the provision of mandatory functions.

7





Financial remits presented to cabinet each
spring / early summer
Annual budget challenge and options
appraisal process in place including
budget scrutiny
Robust monthly budget monitoring to
review progress towards targets and
regular reporting to Cabinet

66








Overview and Scrutiny
Planning future budgets as far as possible
to show financial risks related to funding
uncertainty
Statutory reporting on robustness of
budget estimates
Active engagements through S.151 Chief
Finance Officer networks to seek clarity on
future funding
Maintenance of adequate levels of
balances and reserves
Consistent external audit opinions
sustained over time

Transformation and Major Projects
Unforeseen events and/or adverse reaction to
council programmes result in the failure of (or
the serious delay to) key capital projects or to
direct housing delivery projects causing damage
to the council’s ability to meet the borough’s
long term housing and investment needs and
resulting in short term financing or funding
implications for the council.








Ongoing quality assurance of processes to
mitigate scope for challenge
Close inter-departmental working with
colleagues to develop overall planning
strategies
Work with press office and key partners to
manage communication
Key contracts and frameworks being put in
place by the council
Adherence to the prudential code that
regulates and contains council borrowing
Appropriate financial provision (MRP) to
secure borrowing risk.

Legal and Regulatory – Government policy
Legislative and / or financial changes, including
current and future loss of funding or
international factors stemming from changes in
government policy, seriously impact on the
delivery of balanced budgets for council
services and the council’s ability to meet either
the pressures created by changes in demand
for services or the opportunities due to lack of
capacity.







Seek to influence policy through
professional networks
Contributions to local, regional and
professional responses to Government
consultations and mandates
Departments to keep up to date with
changes affecting their services
Collaborative working with other local
authorities and London boroughs to fully
understand any changes
Seek expert external legal and
professional advice as appropriate

Unforeseen Major Event
An unforeseen major event occurs which affects
critical services and the council’s ability to
deliver business as usual resulting in financial

8




Maintain and update disaster recovery and
business continuity plans
Undertake practice scenarios to check

67

strain and impacts on the resilience and
wellbeing of staff.




robustness of business continuity plans
Engagement with contractors and partners
to check preparedness
Flexible, trained staff in place to respond
to changes in demand

Asset Management
Failure to invest appropriately in the
maintenance or management of the council’s
assets, to have clear sight of responsibility for
assets, or a sudden and unforeseen event
which may give rise to unacceptable future
liabilities.






Programmes of planned and preventative
maintenance (PPM) in place
Capital investment strategy and targeted
investment in assets in place
Annual asset condition verification and
effective monitoring of assets
Insurance programme in place to respond
to sudden and unforeseen events

Failure of Key Provider
The unexpected failure of a key provider /
partner / contractor resulting in serious
disruption to a critical service and potential
increased expenditure and need for resources
to provide an alternative solution with resulting
potential reputational damage.






Robust procurement and contracting
processes in place safeguarding against
foreseen failure
Evaluation of third sector grant
programmes
Contingency and business continuity plans
to be maintained
Backup contractors in place where
appropriate

Climate Emergency
Impact of the climate change strategy creates
capacity, financial or practical operational
challenges and pressures with the potential for
reputational damage for any failure in delivery.









Specific capital investment to tackle
climate risks and opportunities
Climate Emergency team established
under Director of Climate
Cross departmental collaboration to
develop the council’s strategy
Engagement with stakeholders and
partners
Development of council governance
structures, policies and procedures to
incorporate a commitment to the strategy
Development of clear and funded plan of
activity to meet objectives of the council
Clear communication plan with all
stakeholders

Fraud


Process, control, or management failure

9

Fraud awareness training of key risk areas

68

particularly during periods of significant change,
economic and social hardship and ongoing
funding reductions leads to an increase in
fraudulent activity resulting in financial and
legislative consequences for the council and the
potential for reputational damage.








as identified through the risk register
Internal audit plan aligned to key fraud
risks
Proactive work undertaken by internal
anti-fraud team
Corporate governance guidance followed
Active contract management by contract
managers
Regular reviews of authorisation limits of
staff through council’s schemes of
management and delegation
Crime insurance in place to minimise any
financial loss

Health & Safety
Failure to provide adequate provision of
protection of staff, elected members, residents
and all relevant stakeholders leading to their
safety and / or mental health and wellbeing
being compromised.






10

Health and safety staffing arrangements
and corporate and departmental systems
regularly reviewed
Staff wellbeing programme in place and
promoted
Cautionary contact warning system to be
further developed
Individual risk assessments for post covid
period to remain for most vulnerable
employees

69

APPENDIX 2 - Types of Insurance Held by the Council
Insurance
Type

Description of Cover

Examples

Insurer

Extent of
Cover

Annual
Review/
Renewal

Public
Liability

As a result of negligence
of the council in carrying
out its duties, 3rd
parties suffer injury or
loss.

1. Slip, trip or fall
resulting in personal
injury
2. Tenant property
damage as a result of
council negligence in
repairing the property
3. Historic child abuse
claim

RMP QBE

All Council

1 October

Employers
Liability

As a result of negligence
of the council,
employees (including
volunteers, members
etc) have suffered
injury.

1. Employee falls down
stairs and believes the
council was negligent
(e.g. unsafe working
place).
2. Teaching assistant /
care working assaulted
by 3rd party and
believes the council
should have provided
better protection.

RMP QBE

All Council

1 October

Officials
Indemnity

As a result of negligence
of a council employee
carrying out a statutory
duty, a 3rd party suffers
a financial loss.

1. Land search is carried
out by the council and
incorrect information is
given to a 3rd party who
suffers loss as result.

RMP QBE

All Council

1 October

Professional
Indemnity

As a result of the
negligence of a council
employee carrying out a
non-statutory duty, a
3rd party suffers a
financial loss.

1. A non-statutory
professional service
provided by the council
e.g. legal advice given is
incorrect and 3rd party
suffers loss as a result.

RMP QBE

All Council

1 October

Libel And
Slander

As a result of writing or
doing something that is
slanderous to a 3rd
party the council is sued
for financial loss.

1. Writing something
dishonest regarding an
individual.

RMP QBE

All Council

1 October

11

70

Property
(General)

Property damage to
school or council office

1. Major fire / flood at
council property or
school contained in the
property schedule.

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Property
(Housing)

Property damage to
housing stock

1. Major fire or flood at a
council owned housing
block in the housing
schedule of properties.

Zurich

Housing
Department

1 October

All Risks

Cover for various works
of art and jewels.

1. Theft of mayor’s
regalia or work of art.

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Money

Money in storage or in
transit.

1. Hold up of cash in
transit

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Computers

Property damage to
removable computer
equipment, including
servers, laptops etc

1. Fire at general
property with damage to
computer equipment.

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Crime
(Fidelity
Guarantee)

An employee defrauds
the council of money or
assets

1. Officer of the council
in collusion with 3rd
party circumvents the
council's controls to take
money or assets.

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Personal
Accident
and Travel

Non-accidental injury to
employee during the
course of their
employment.
Cover also in force when
an insured person is
travelling on official
duties

Member of public
attacks and injures an
employee of the council
while doing their job
Cover also provided for
medical expenses

RSA

All Council

1 October

12

71

Out of
School
Activity &
Pupil
Personal
Accident
Insurance

Travel insurance cover
for all insured persons
(pupils, teaching and
support staff, adult
volunteers, helpers and
assistants, and other
authorised children) of
participating schools
whilst on organised trips
outside the designated
school boundaries. Also
includes cover for
accidents within the
school boundaries.

1. School trips cancelled
for insurable reason, i.e.
sickness / ill health.
2. Injury of pupil while
on school trip.
3. Injury whilst within
the school boundaries

Chubb

Schools
who have
bought into
the policy.

1 October

Medical
Malpractice

Specialist cover for
teachers and school
helpers who may be
required to provide
medical procedures to
pupils in their care

1. Teaching assistant
treats a child with
complex medical
condition and child
suffers injury.

CNA

Schools
who have
bought into
the policy.

1
October

Motor

3rd party motor
insurance and accidental
damage above excess
for council motor
vehicles.

1. Council employee
while driving injures /
kills third party driver, or
causes serious damage
to vehicle / property.

Zurich

All Council

1 October

Terrorism
Cover

Insurance of property
against physical loss or
physical damage
occurring during the
period of insurance
caused by an Act of
Terrorism and/or
Sabotage

Act of Terrorism and Act
of Sabotage definitions
are available

Lloyd's
Underwriters

160 Tooley
Street &
Queens
Road
Complex

1 October

Marine
Insurance

Specialist cover for
marine liabilities

Cover provided includes
marine operators
liabilities, pollution clean
up costs, removal of
wreck, marine property
and equipment and
business interruption

IGI Insurance
Company Ltd

South Dock
Marina

1 October

13

72

Agenda Item 10
Item No.
10.

Classification:
Open

Date:
7 February 2022

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee

Report title:

Covid-19 Pandemic: Update February 2022

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that the audit, governance and standards committee note the impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic on spending and income and the government grants to support the
council’s financial losses in 2021-22.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
2. Following the September 2020 report on the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
committee requested regular updates on the council’s increased costs and income losses
alongside updates on any additional government funding.
3. This report details the Covid-19 funding, expected additional costs and income losses in
2021-22.
GOVERNMENT GRANTS
4. The government announced one tranche of general support funding for 2021-22.
Southwark’s allocation was £11.4m, which was designated to support quarter 1 (April to
June 2021) spending pressures. To support sales, fees and charges losses in quarter 1, the
council have been awarded £1.9m. There has been no support for business rate and
council tax losses or commercial and other income in 2020-21.
5. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) has continued to
request information on the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in 2021-22 beyond
quarter 1, with the latest return in November, requesting data for quarter 2 (July to
September 2021) quarter 3 ( October to December 2021 and an estimate for the full impact
in 2021-22. However, no further general support has been announced beyond quarter 1 for
2021-22.
6. It is likely that there will be no further general grants awarded this year but that any further
support will be via specific grants. Specific grants to date in 2021-22 include those ring
fenced for ASC (£5.9m); health grants, the ‘Contain Management Outbreak Fund- (£2.9m)
to support the containment of covid outbreaks; grants to support vulnerable households,
Household Support Grant (£2.7m); and a continuation of the Covid Local Support Scheme
(£1.3m) to support vulnerable families with children.
FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS
7. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was published on 16 December
2021, which provided a real terms increase in local authority funding of over 4%. However,
despite a favourable settlement for Southwark Council, including a new one off ‘services

1

73

grant’ of £8m, there was no additional resources announced specifically for the impact of
the pandemic on council finances for 2022-23. So it is likely that this relative uplift for one
year is intended to ‘cover’ the impact of the pandemic next year.
8. There is council tax and business rate debt which has accumulated during the pandemic for
which grant funding has only partially covered losses. It is estimated that the net loss this
year will be £4.4m. There is no indication from central government that these losses will be
reimbursed in future years.
9. Local businesses continue to be heavily impacted by the pandemic. Recognising that the
rise of the omicron variant means that some businesses are likely to struggle, the
government announced in December 2021, one off grants of up to £6,000 for business in
the hospitality and leisure sector together with discretionary funding to support other
businesses. Southwark’s share of this is £4.1m.
10. Beyond 2021-22, the council will have to continue to deal with the repercussions of the
pandemic, for example, the councils capacity to manage the post pandemic recovery, staff
returning to the office and how this will look in the longer term.
INCREASES IN SPENDING AND LOSSES IN INCOME DUE TO THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC- FULL YEAR ESTIMATED OUTTURN 2021-22
11. Table 1 shows details of the November DLUHC return for the full year. The estimated
increase in spending due to the pandemic now sits at £40.8m, consistent with the previous
estimate of £40.6m. The largest areas for additional expenditure remain Housing, Adult
Social Care and Public Health.
Table 1: Reported Estimated Additional Costs for the Financial Year 2021-22 due to Covid19
FY 2021-22
Estimate
£m

Comments

Adult Social Care
(ASC)

8.7

CCG and grant funding of £6.6m to support additional costs.

Children's Services

1.0

Additional expected costs driven mainly by costs
associated with care leavers.

Education Services

2.8

Mainly support for vulnerable children

Highways & Transport

0.0

Housing

14.0

£11.7m for supporting the homeless and £2.3m on the costs of
rough sleeping

Environment, Planning
& Public Health

7.1

Largely due to costs associated with testing, contact tracing and
outbreak planning which are likely to continue as the impacts of the
pandemic are felt.

Culture

2.1

Majority of additional costs due to operational costs of leisure
centres.

Corporate

1.7

Increases in IT, and contractual payment increases for expansion
of benefit payments

Service area

2

74

FY 2021-22
Estimate
£m

Comments

Other

3.4

PPE costs, cleaning, shielding, SESS, construction costs

Expenditure
Increase

40.8

In line with previous estimation of £40.6m.

Service area

11 Table 2 shows estimated income losses of £18.3m for the full year 2021-22, consistent with
the previous estimate of £18.2m.
Table 2: Reported Estimated Additional Income Losses for the Financial Year 2021-22 due
to Covid-19
Income source

FY 2021-22
Estimation
£m

Notes

Business rates

4.0

Southwark’s share of business rates losses

Council Tax

0.6

Southwark’s share of council tax receipt losses

Collection Losses

4.6

Commercial Income

0.4

Losses on commercial property

Other income

2.3

Losses in housing rents

Other Income Losses

2.7

Highways & Transport

0

Losses in off-street and on-street parking

Cultural

3.5

Losses in recreation and sports losses and other losses
from youth services and libraries

Planning &
Development

0.9

Reduction in income projection in statutory and nonstatutory planning fees

Other sales, fees and charges,
income losses

6.6

Includes income losses in regulatory and enforcement
services, education and adult social care

Sales, Fees and Charges Losses

11.0

Total income losses

18.3

Previous estimation was £18.1m.

12. Table 3 updates the total expected shortfall position across the year. The total current
estimate of expenditure and income losses is £59.1m, a slight increase from the September
estimate of £58.7m.
13. The expected shortfall for 2021-22, has though reduced to £22.9m from £28.5m. In
December, additional specific grants of £3m have already been announced for Southwark.
Between January and March 2022, this estimated gap is expected to further reduce as
additional specific grants are made available to those areas that are most effected by the
ongoing impact of the pandemic. Thereafter the uplift in central government grants in 2022-

3

75

23 is expected to cover the residual impact of the pandemic, on the assumption that the
impact of the pandemic gradually reduces.
Table 3: Estimated Potential Funding Shortfall for the Financial Year 2021-22 due to Covid-19

Current Estimates

FY 2021-22
Estimate
£m

Notes

Expenditure increases

40.8

Mainly due to housing, public health and
ASC costs.

Business rates and council tax losses

4.6

Sales, Fees and Charges losses
Other Income losses- Commercial,
housing rents
Total current estimate of expenditure and
income losses
General Grant funding for expenditure losses
2021 Tranche

11.0

Predominantly driven by loss of income
from leisure centres and reduced court
costs from inaction over collection of
council tax and business rates.

2.7
59.1
-11.4

Sales, Fees and Charges

-1.9

Contain Management and Outbreak
Grant 21-22

-3.0

Rough sleepers initiative

-3.3

Housing benefit/universal credit and tenant
contributions

-6.8

Adult Social Care specific grants

-3.5

Clinical Commissioning Group Funding

-3.1

COVID Winter Grant Scheme

-0.4

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Funding

-0.7

COVID Local Support Scheme 21-22

-1.3

New Burdens Grant

-0.5

Welcome Back Fund

-0.3

Estimated additional
grant funding for 2020-21

-36.2

Estimated Potential Funding Shortfall

22.9

Reduction from £2.2m. £1.9m is the actual
total being claimed from MHCLG.

Includes both the general, election, and
homelessness-specific portions of the
grant.

Previous estimation £28.5m

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
Held At
Financial
and
Information Finance and Governance,
Governance files
Second Floor, Tooley Street

4

Contact
Geraldine Chadwick

76

APPENDICES
No.
None

Title

Audit Trail
Lead Officer

Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and
Governance
Report Author
Geraldine Chadwick, Interim Technical Accountant
Version
Final
Dated
20 Jan 2022
Key/Non-Key
Non-key
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought
Comments included
Director of Law and Governance
N/A
N/A
Strategic Director of Finance
N/A
N/A
and Governance
Cabinet Member
N/A
N/A
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
21 January 2022

5

77

Item No.
11.

Classification:
Open

Date:
7 February 2022

Agenda Item 11

Meeting Name:
Audit,
Governance
Standards Committee

Report title:

Appointment of local auditor

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

and

RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the audit, governance and standards committee recommend to council
assembly the invitation to opt into the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)
sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors for five financial years
from 1 April 2023, subject to PSAA assurances that issues relating to the
procurement of external auditors include (amongst other matters), as highlighted in
paragraph 9, will be resolved in a timely manner.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
2.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the council is required to have
its accounts audited by an auditor appointed in accordance with the Act. The 2014
Act allows local authorities to either opt in to the appointing regime or to establish
an auditor panel (either alone or with other local authorities) and conduct their own
procurement exercise.

3.

The Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) is an independent not for profit
company limited by guarantee and established in 2014 by the Local Government
Association. It is specified as an appointing person under the provisions of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing
Person) Regulations 2015.

4.

On the 30 November 2018, the council approved the option of opting into the
authorised national scheme for appointment of external auditors through the sectorled, PSAA for the appointment of an external auditor for five financial years starting
1 April 2018. Under these arrangements the council is currently audited by Grant
Thornton.

5.

In accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit
(Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (the Regulations), PSAA formally invited all
eligible bodies to join the national auditor appointment arrangements for the audit
years 2023/2024 to 2027/2028 in its role as a specified appointing person and carry
out the procurement of audit services for opted in local government bodies for the
audit of accounts from April 2023.

6.

The Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 require these appointments
to have been made by 31 December in the year preceding the year of audit. As the
current five year contract will end on 31 March 2023, the council needs to have
appointed an auditor by 31 December 2022. A decision to become an opted-in
authority must be taken in accordance with the Regulations by the members of an
authority meeting as a Full Council.

78

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
7.

Authorities which do not opt in to the appointing person regime will need to carry
out a procurement exercise. The main benefit of opting into the PSAA’s scheme is
that a collective procurement avoids the need to undertake an individual council
procurement and secures the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor in a
challenging market.

8.

PSAA are currently preparing for the second appointing period which will span the
five consecutive years, covering the accounts for the financial years 2023-24 to
2027-28. The council needs to consider whether to sign up to the next five years or
whether to carry out a procurement process.

9.

There have been concerns about the effectiveness of the delivery of external audit
by the firms procured through the PSAA contract since its inception. The Society of
London Treasurers have taken up these issues collectively with the PSAA. The
main concerns are as follow:






The PSAA have not managed the contract effectively to ensure that external
audit firms meet the statutory deadlines. When evaluating auditor quality a
key measure should be the ability to conclude audits in a timely manner. A
study by the PSAA found that only 9% of local authority audits were
completed before the statutory deadline of 30 September 2021.
Lack of capacity of the audit firms to perform field work and carry out internal
quality checks causes unnecessary delays.
The requirements of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) are slowing
down audit checks, as these are often tailored to private sector firms and
are not relevant to local councils, e.g. valuation of local authority assets
That there is currently no agreement on the standards of working papers
expected which can create additional work for local council officers, and
delay completion. Where there are disputes about standards of working
papers, there should be an independent dispute resolution process that
allows for these to be concluded quickly.

10. Before the council signs up to the second period, 2023-24 to 2027-28, the Strategic
Director of Finance and Governance needs assurances from the PSAA that the
needs of the local authority client are fully considered and that the issues in
paragraph 9, are resolved.
11. It is therefore recommended that the council opt in to the appointing person
arrangements to be made by PSAA, subject to assurances that these concerns are
addressed through the next procurement process. To become an opted-in
authority, the form of acceptance notice has to be completed by 11 March 2022.
12. The audit, governance and standards committee’s terms of reference include “To
have oversight over the appointment of the external auditor”. However, as
Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires
that the decision to opt in must be taken by the council assembly, the audit,
governance and standards committee is asked to make the recommendation above
to council assembly. The meeting of council assembly on 23 February 2022 is the
last ordinary meeting of council assembly before the date by which notification has
to be sent to PSAA.

79

Community impact statement
13. This report is not considered to have a direct impact on local people and
communities.
Resource implications
14. There are no direct resource implications in this report. It is anticipated that fees in
the future will be manageable within existing revenue resources, although this will
be kept under review.
Consultation
15. There has been no public consultation on this report.
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
16. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
Held At
PSAA –appointing period https://www.psaa.co.uk/about2023-24 – 2027-28
us/appointing-personinformation/appointing-period-2023-242027-28/

Contact
Geraldine
Chadwick

APPENDICES
No.
None

Title

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officers Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
Report Author Geraldine Chadwick; Interim Technical accountant
Version Final
Dated 20 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy
No
No
Strategic Director of Finance
No
No
and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
20 January 2022

80

Agenda Item 13
Item No.
13.

Classification:
Open

Date:
7 February 2021

Meeting Name:
Audit, governance and standards
committee

Report title:

Review of the complaints made under the Code of
Conduct

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Director of Law and Governance

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the committee notes this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
2.

The Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) provides for the abolition of the former standards
regime including Standards for England, statutory standards committees, the
jurisdiction of the First Tier Tribunal over standards of conduct, and a nationally set
code of conduct for councillors.

3.

Southwark formed a standards committee and appointed independent persons.
Southwark have 2 independent persons.

4.

The responsibility for standards activity including the monitoring of the operation
of the member’s code of conduct (“the code”) passed to this committee in April
2016.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
5.

The Act requires local authorities to have arrangements to investigate allegations
of breach of the code of conduct against members and make decisions on them.
The current arrangements, with revisions, have been in place since 1 July 2012.
The new arrangements have allowed the monitoring officer to provide local
solutions to resolve complaints without formal investigations.

6.

Since 2012 the monitoring officer agreed to analyse the complaints data and
report this information to the appropriate committee annually. The data for
January 2017 to December 2021 is shown in appendix A.

7.

There is a current audit of complaints under the Code of Conduct and Member
Enquiries taking place. Findings will be reported to the Committee in due course.
However, the Monitoring Officer will consider and respond to any
recommendations made concerning complaints under the Code of Conduct.

8.

Under section 26 of the Localism Act 2011, Southwark must have in place
arrangements under which allegations that a member of the authority, has failed
to comply with the authority’s Code of Conduct can be investigated. The current
arrangements have not been reviewed since 2016 and the Monitoring Officer will
be reviewing the arrangements; a further report with proposed changes will be
1

81

brought to Committee later this year.
Conclusions
9.

The numbers of complaints remain at a low level; the monitoring officer has
grouped complaints against members from multiple members of the public,
including 4 complaints group into one of the complaints in 2020 so the actual
number of complaints may be higher.

10.

It should also be noted the monitoring officer received a number of other
grievances which were not considered to be complaints against the code.

11.

There are no clear causes for complaints, although many arise from members of
the public being unable to resolve issues with the council or disagreement with
council decisions or policies. Once again the use of social media led to a number
of complaints.

12.

The intervention of the Whips to resolve complaints involving members remains a
positive factor in producing local solutions or avoiding formal solutions.

13.

The cost of these complaints is difficult to quantify because officer and member
time in assisting with the complaint is not all recorded.

Complaints which required Investigation
14.

One complaints required external investigation in this period; a report was made
to the sub-committee in January.

Report back on Local Resolution
15.

In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint
informally, without the need for formal investigation. Such informal resolution
may involve the member accepting their conduct was unacceptable and offering
an apology, or other remedial action by the authority. The Monitoring Officer will
in this case send out a decision notice to the person making the allegation, the
member who is the subject of the allegation and any other persons the
Monitoring Officer considers appropriate.

16.

There was one such resolution in 2021.

17.

In the 2021 case the deputy monitoring officer considered local resolution was
possible. He consulted with the independent person and the subject member.
The subject member had already updated their register of interests.

Community impact statement
18.

The ability for members of the public to make complaints about councillors’ failure to
comply with a code of conduct may be of concern to local people and communities,
which could result in a perception of poor governance. This could affect the
reputation of the council.

19.

However, the council maintains an open and transparent process for making
complaints against members, information is assessable on the council’s website.

2

82

Health Impact Statement
20.

There are no specific identified health impacts resulting from any of the proposals or
recommendations, so a health impact statement is not necessary for this report.

Climate change implications
21.

Following the council assembly meeting on the 14 July 2021, the council has now
committed to considering the climate change implications of any decisions made.

22.

There are no substantive negative effects anticipated as a result of the
recommendations and proposals.

Resource implications
23.

Any implications can be contained within current budgets.

Legal implications
24.

The specific legal implications relating to this report have been included in the
report.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
The Constitution.

Held At
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourCou
ncil/HowTheCouncilWorks/councilconst
itution.html
2nd floor,
PO Box 64529,
London, SE1P 5LX

APPENDICES
No.
A

Title
Complaints Breakdown

3

Contact
Constitutional team;
constitutional.team
@southwark.gov.uk

83

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer Doreen Forrester-Brown Director of Law and Governance
Report Author Norman Coombe, Acting Deputy Head of Law
Version Final
Dated 18 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought
Comments included
Director of Law and Governance
Yes
Incorporated
Strategic Director of Finance &
No
No
Governance
Cabinet Member
N/a
N/a
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
20 January 2022

4

Appendix A - Complaints Breakdown

year
Total
number of
complaints
Member
complains
against
member

2018

2019

2020

2021

7

5

1

4

6

None

None

None

None

1
1 [local
solution by
monitoring
officer]

7

5

1

4

6

7 [ no
breach of
the code
identified]

4 [ no
breach of
the code
identified]

1 [local
solution by
monitoring
officer]

1 [local
solution by
monitoring
officer]

1 [SubCommittee
notified by
monitoring
officer]

1
[determined
by SubCommittee]

1 [ no breach
of the code
identified]

4 [ no breach
of the code
identified]

2 still on going

Officer
complains
against
members

None

None

None

1

None

None

84

Member of
public
complains
against
members

2017

Appendix A - Complaints Breakdown

85

2

86

Agenda Item 14
Item No.
14.

Classification:
Open

Report title:

Date:
7 February 2022

Meeting Name:
Audit, governance and
standards committee
Report on the operational use of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Director of Law and Governance

RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the committee note the information relating to the use of RIPA for the
period shown in Appendix A.

2.

That the committee note the letter from the Investigatory Powers
Commissioner relating to the use of RIPA in Appendix C.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) puts a regulatory
framework around a range of investigatory powers used by local authorities.
This is done to ensure the powers are used lawfully and in a way that is
compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. It also requires,
in particular, those authorising the use of covert techniques to give proper
consideration to whether their use is necessary and proportionate.

4.

RIPA legislates for the use by local authorities of covert methods of
surveillance and information gathering to assist in the detection and
prevention of crime in relation to an authorities core functions.

5.

At their meeting on 13 October 2010 the former committee agreed to
consider reports on the use of RIPA.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
6.

The council’s use of these powers is subject to regular inspection and audit
by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) in respect of
covert surveillance authorisations under RIPA. During these inspections,
authorisations and procedures are closely scrutinised and Authorising
Officers are interviewed by the inspectors.

7.

The council was last inspected by HH Brian Barker, Assistant Surveillance
Commissioner, on 3 October 2016. The council was due to be inspected
again in March 2020; this was stopped due to the public health emergency.

8.

A virtual inspection took place in 2021 by an inspector, who examined your
use of powers under Part II of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
2000 (RIPA) in relation to directed surveillance and CHIS. The information
1

87

provided has demonstrated a level of compliance that removes, for now, the
requirement for a physical inspection. A copy of their letter is attached as
Appendix B.
9.

Local authority authorisations and notices under RIPA (Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000) will only be given effect once an order has
been granted by a Justice of the Peace. Authorisations are for 3 months and
can only be extended with further judicial approval. Within the 3 month
period they are subject to monthly reviews to ensure they are still required.

10. Additionally, local authority use of directed surveillance under RIPA has been
limited to the investigation of crimes which attract a six month or more
custodial sentence, with the exception of offences relating to the underage
sale of alcohol and tobacco.
11. Appendix A shows the usage for the period 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. Appendix B shows the usage for the period 1 April 2010 to 31
December 2019 for comparison purposes.
Community impact statement
12. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) governs these
activities and provides a means of ensuring that they are carried out in
accordance with law and subject to safeguards against abuse.
Health Impact Statement
13. There are no specific identified health impacts resulting from any of the
proposals or recommendations, so a health impact statement is not
necessary for this report.
Climate change implications
14. Following the council assembly meeting on the 14 July 2021, the council has
now committed to considering the climate change implications of any
decisions made.
15. There are no substantive negative effects anticipated as a result of the
recommendations and proposals.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
The Constitution.

Held At
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourCounc
il/HowTheCouncilWorks/councilconstituti
on.html
2nd floor,
PO Box 64529,
London, SE1P 5LX

2

Contact
Virginia
WynnJones
020 7525 7055

88

APPENDICES
No.
A

Title
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

B

1 April 2010 to 31 December 2020

C

Letter from the Investigatory Powers Commissioner relating to the use of RIPA

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer Doreen Forrester-Brown, Director of Law and Governance
Report Author Norman Coombe, Acting Deputy Head of Law
Version Final
Dated 18 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought
Comments included
Director of Law and Governance
Yes
Incorporated
Strategic Director of Finance
No
No
and Governance
Cabinet Member
N/a
N/a
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
20 January 2022

3

89

APPENDIX A

Reference

date authorised

purpose

length of
investigation

Were
investigators
given extra
authorisation
to
acquire/access
confidential
information?

EN90

13.10.2021

Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco

Terminated
10.01.2022

No

4

90

APPENDIX B

Reference

date
authorised

purpose

length of
investigation

Were
investigators
given extra
authorisation
to
acquire/access
confidential
information?

EN55

01.04.2010

Authorisation
cancelled
12.05.2010

No

N/A

29.04.2010

Refused

N/A

N/A

24.06.2010

Refused

N/A

EN57

13.07.2010

Covert
surveillance
to detect
fraud
Proposed
use of covert
CCTV to
gather
evidence of
begging &
ASB
Proposed
covert
surveillance
of bar/club
by Officers
to establish
whether
unauthorised
activities
taking place
Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing -

3 months

Yes

EN58

01.04.2011

Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing -

3 months

No

EN59

11.05.2011

Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing -

3 months

Yes

EN60

20.10.2011

Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing

3 months

Yes

EN61

28.10.2011

directed
surveillance

3 months

Yes

5

91

for the
identification
of persons
supplying
illegal
products
EN62

09.02.2012

Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing

3 months

Yes

EN63

30.06.2012

Under age
goods sales
test
purchasing

3 months

No

EN64

25.10.2012

under age
test
purchase for
the sale of
tobacco,
alcohol and
knives

3 months

No

EN65

25.11.2013

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
10.01.2014

No

EN66

20.01.2014

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
04.04.2014

No

EN67

15.11.2014

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Refused

N/A

EN68

15.12.2014

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
07.01.2015

No

EN69

18.09.2015

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
01.12.2015

NO

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Refused

N/A

EN70

6

92

EN71

23.12.2015

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
10.02.2016

NO

EN72

23.12.2015

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
01.02.2016

NO

EN73

23.12.2015

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
10.02.2016

NO

EN74

23.12.2015

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
01.02.2016

NO

EN75

13.01.2016

Terminated
12.02.2016

NO

EN76

13.01.2016

Terminated
12.02.2016

NO

EN77

13.01.2016

Terminated
12.02.2016

NO

EN78

13.01.2016

Terminated
12.02.2016

NO

EN79

29.11.2016

surveillance
concerning
sale of
unsafe food
surveillance
concerning
sale of
unsafe food
surveillance
concerning
sale of
unsafe food
surveillance
concerning
sale of
unsafe food
sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
23.01.2017

NO

EN80

29.11.2016

sale of
counterfeit
tobacco

Terminated
24.02.2017

NO

EN81

24.03.2017

Terminated
08.05.2017

NO

EN82

13.07.2017

surveillance
concerning
sale of
illegal skin
lightener
surveillance

Terminated

NO

7

93

concerning
prolific fly
tipping
Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco
Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco
Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illegal
skin
lighteners

12.10.2017

EN83

15.01.2018

EN84

17.09.2018

EN85

15.08.2018

EN86

It was decided to withdraw the application due to
operational reasons before authorisation

EN87

15.10.2018

EN88

05.09.2019

EN89

17.01.2020

Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco
Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco
Surveillance
of suspect
suspected of
selling illicit
tobacco

Terminated
09.04.2018

No

Terminated
03.10.2018

Terminated
21.08.2018

Terminated
13.12.2018

Terminated
11.12.2019

No

Terminated
17.03.2020

No

8

94

Agenda Item 15
Item No.
15.

Classification:
Open

Date:
7 February 2022

Meeting Name:
Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee

Report title:

Annual report on the work and performance of the audit,
governance and standards committee in 2021-22

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

From:

Audit, governance and standards committee

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the audit, governance and standards committee forward this report on its work
and performance in 2021-22 to all councillors, subject to any amendments it wishes
to make.

2.

That the committee consider the template self-assessment form and respond to the
statements.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.

The purpose of this report is to review this committee’s work and performance in
2021-22.

4.

The audit, governance and standards committee’s terms of reference include a
requirement to report annually to all councillors on its work and performance during
the year.

5.

The aims of the report are to make councillors aware of the audit, governance and
standards committee’s work in relation to its audit, financial reporting, treasury
management, governance and standards responsibilities, and to provide assurance
on are as covered or to identify any concerns.

6.

This report also considers the effectiveness of the audit, governance and standards
committee which forms a part of the review of internal audit, and which will in turn
be reported as part of the review of the system of internal control, as required under
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Role of the committee
7.

The purpose of the audit, governance and standards committee is to provide:





Independent assurance of the adequacy of the council’s governance
arrangements, including its standards regime, the risk management
framework and the associated control environment.
Independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and
weakens the control environment.
Oversight of the financial reporting process.
Scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

95



Operation of a framework to promote and maintain high standards of conduct
by councillors, co-opted members and church and parent governor
representatives.

8.

In line with the above, the committee’s terms of reference are structured by reference
to its key functions in terms of governance and standards, audit activity (internal and
external), the accounts and treasury management. Since the new standards regime
for councillors was introduced in 2012, the frequency and business for the standards
committee had reduced, and there was no statutory requirement to have a standards
committee. In May 2016 the standards committee was not re-established as a standalone committee, and its roles and functions were amalgamated with the audit and
governance committee.

9.

The audit, governance and standards committee agrees a work programme each
year. A summary of the committee’s business during 2021-22 in relation to its areas
of responsibility is set out below.

Audit activity
Internal audit
10.

The committee received and considered regular reports on the performance of
internal audit and the outcome from its work during the year, as well as the internal
auditors’ annual report on the work of internal audit and anti-fraud 2020-21.
Members had questions for both officers and the engagement manager for the
auditors, BDO.

External audit
11.

The committee received regular progress reports from the external auditor (Grant
Thornton) throughout the year. It also considered Grant Thornton’s audit plans for
2021-22 for both the council and the Southwark pension fund, and the audit findings
reports and annual audit letter for 2020-21.

12.

The committee considered the external auditor’s annual fees for 2021-22 for both
the council and the Southwark pension fund. Grant Thornton also reported to the
committee on their review of the council’s arrangements for securing financial
resilience and on assurance work undertaken by them as to management processes
and the committee’s oversight of the risk of fraud, compliance with laws and
regulation, and matters in relation to going concern, to inform their audit risk
assessment.

13.

The external auditor has reported on their work for the financial year 2021-22
regularly.

Accounts
14.

The committee considered a draft of the 2020-21 statement of accounts at its July
2021 meeting. Government guidance following the Covid-19 pandemic gave local
councils extra time to complete their accounts, and the final accounts were
presented to the committee in September 2021.

Governance and standards activity
15.

The committee continued its approach to the consideration of governance matters
for 2021-22. It completed the discussions with strategic directors on their

96

department’s governance arrangements, and considered specific areas of interest.
16.

In June 2021, Michael Scorer, the strategic director of environment and leisure,
attended the committee. In July 2021, Duncan Whitfield, strategic director of finance
and governance, updated the committee on local government finance across
London and the country.

17.

The governance conversations planned for September 2021 and November 2021
were deferred so the strategic directors could focus on immediate responses to the
covid-19 pandemic and lockdown requirements across the borough.

18.

In February 2022, the committee heard from Eleanor Kelly, the chief executive, on
the council’s governance.

19.

The committee have also had an in depth series of reports on the work to improve
the members’ enquiries service, and ongoing coverage of the shared IT service.

20.

The work on corporate risk and insurance for 2021-22 has been supported by the
council’s internal auditors and integrated into their regular update reports.

21.

The committee’s annual report on whistle blowing outcomes has been considered
by the committee at its February 2022 meeting.

22.

The committee’s work programme for 2021-22 is considered regularly and updated
as required.

23.

A report on the council’s use of RIPA (Regulatory Investigatory Powers Act) and the
OSC (Office of Surveillance Commissioners) inspection of Southwark has been
considered by the committee at its February 2022 meeting.

24.

The establishment of the two standards sub-committees (civic awards and conduct)
were approved by the committee in July 2021. The committee continued its
agreement from July 2018 that the number of co-opted community members on the
civic awards sub-committee stand at four, and that the sub-committee be as gender
balanced as possible; in that two of the community representatives serving on the
sub-committee should ideally be women.

25.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the civic awards process for 2021-22 was delayed,
and the Covid Civic Awards were created as a one-off means of honouring people
who have supported others in the borough over the pandemic.

26.

The Civic Awards 2022 were launched in January 2022, and include the new
Diversity Award championed by members of the audit, governance and standards
committee. The criteria for this award will be considered further, to ensure it is fit for
its intended purpose.

Treasury management
27.

Members received a report on the revised treasury management policy statement,
and considered the council’s 2021-22 treasury management strategy statement in
November 2021.

Effectiveness of the audit and governance committee
28.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require a review of internal audit to be carried
out, including consideration of the effectiveness of this committee. An annual opinion

97

is given by the head of anti-fraud and internal audit.
29.

To complement this, it is proposed that (as in previous years) this committee
assesses itself using a checklist produced by CIPFA. A copy of this was circulated
separately to members for their responses, and responses have been forwarded to
the strategic director of finance and governance.

Training
30.

During the year, information on relevant issues and developments have been
provided through CIPFA Better Governance Forum’s ’Audit Committee Update’,
which is published three times a year. These focus on key topics and include a
round-up of legislation, reports and developments and are circulated to all members
of the committee for their information.

31.

Training will be provided as required and officers will continue to arrange training as
opportunities arise.

Development opportunities
32.

The year saw the following principal achievements:
a)

b)
c)
d)
e)
33.

Coverage of all elements of the committee’s work programme, including the
successful inclusion of standards work into the responsibilities of the
committee
Continued assurance of corporate governance arrangements, through
discussions with strategic directors and directors.
Further assurance as to the operation of the council’s whistle blowing policy
Ongoing constructive challenge from members in respect of reports received
by them
Ongoing updates on the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

For the coming year, the following are areas where the committee has the
opportunity to effect further development or to which it may wish to give
consideration:
a)

b)
c)

The continuing impact of welfare reform and further cuts in government
funding from a governance perspective and, in particular, the identification of
risks and ongoing risk management
The outcomes of the changes in work processes due to the Covid-19
pandemic
Future and ongoing training needs.

Conclusion
34.

The committee’s work programme aims to ensure that the committee is able to carry
out its functions effectively. To this end, the programme is structured to cover the
key areas of audit activity (both internal and external), governance and standards
activity, financial reporting and scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and
policies.

35.

The committee continued to ask questions on matters before it in a challenging yet
constructive way. In some cases, this has resulted in further information being
provided to the committee to provide the assurance sought; in others, it has resulted
in increased focus on the implementation of action plans.

98

36.

The committee has kept its work programme under review in 2021-22 and made
changes when appropriate.

37.

Through its work, the committee is able to confirm that:



38.

The council’s system of risk management is adequate to identify risk and to
allow the authority to understand the appropriate management of those risks;
There are no areas of significant duplication or omission in the systems of
governance in the authority that have come to the committee’s attention and
not been adequately resolved.

The work programme for the committee for 2021-22 is included elsewhere on this
agenda for consideration and agreement, and this will be reviewed and amended on
an ongoing basis as necessary to help to ensure that the committee can continue to
provide assurance of the adequacy of the council’s governance arrangements.

Policy implications
39.

There are no policy implications in the proposals in this report.

Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts
Community impact statement
40.

This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a significant
impact on any particular community or group.

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement
41.

There are no direct equalities implications in the proposals in this report.

Health impact statement
42.

There are no direct health implications in the proposals in this report.

Climate change implications
43.

There are no direct climate change implications in the proposals in this report.

Resource implications
44.

There are no direct resource implications in this report.

Conclusion
45.

There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
46.

The strategic director of finance and governance remains committed to the important
role of the audit, governance and standards committee and notes that it continues
to function in line with its terms of reference. The performance of the committee
continues to be strengthened by the attendance of officers with key governance

99

roles and it is expected that the committee will continue to obtain assurance of
governance arrangements from this.
47.

The committee has operated in accordance with its responsibilities in key finance
and audit matters, including the statement of accounts, treasury policies, and
internal audit work, which are key issues for the s.151 officer (Local Government Act
1972).

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
CIPFA Audit committees – Practical
Guidance for Local Authorities and
Police 2018 edition

Held At
Finance and
Governance, Second
Floor, Tooley Street

Contact
Geraldine
Chadwick

APPENDICES
Number
1

Title
Self-assessment form

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer Duncan Whitfield, Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
Report Author Virginia Wynn-Jones, Principal Constitutional Officer
Version Final
Dated 28 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy
No
No
Strategic Director of Finance
Yes
Yes
and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
28 January 2022

100

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
Self-assessment of Good Practice 2021-22
Question
Yes
Audit committee purpose and governance
1
Does the authority have a
dedicated audit committee?
2

Does the audit committee report
directly to full council?

3

Do the terms of reference clearly
set out the purpose of the
committee in accordance with
CIPFA’s Position Statement?

4

Is the role and purpose of the
audit committee understood and
accepted across the authority?

5

Does the audit committee
provide support to the authority
in meeting the requirements of
good governance?

6

Are the arrangements to hold the
committee to account for its
performance
operating
satisfactorily?

Functions of the committee
7
Do the committee’s terms of
reference explicitly address all
the core areas identified in
CIPFA’s Position Statement?

8

9

- good governance
- assurance framework
- internal audit
- external audit
- financial reporting
- risk management
- value for money or best value
- counter-fraud and corruption.
Is
an
annual
evaluation
undertaken to assess whether
the committee is fulfilling its
terms of reference and that
adequate consideration has
been given to all core areas?
Has the audit committee
considered the wider areas
identified in CIPFA’s Position

No

Partly

Comments/action

101

Question
Yes
Statement and whether it would
be appropriate for the committee
to undertake them?
- considering matters at the
request of other committees or
statutory officers

10

11

- ethical values
- treasury management
Where coverage of core areas
has been found to be limited, are
plans in place to address this?
Has the committee maintained
its non-advisory role by not
taking on any decision-making
powers that are not in line with its
purpose?

Membership and support
12
Has an effective audit committee
structure and composition of the
committee been selected? This
should include:
-

13

14

15

16

separation
from
the
executive
- an appropriate mix of
knowledge and skills among
the membership
- a size of committee that is
not unwieldy
- where
independent
members are used, that they
have been appointed using
an appropriate process.
Does the chair have appropriate
knowledge and skills?
Are arrangements in place to
support the committee with
briefings and training
Has the membership of the
committee
been
assessed
against the core knowledge and
skills framework and found to be
satisfactory?
Does the committee have good
working relations with key people
and organisations, including
external audit, internal audit and
the chief financial officer?

No

Partly

Comments/action

102

Question
Yes
17
Is adequate secretariat and
administrative support to the
committee provided?

No

Partly

Comments/action

Effectiveness of the committee
18
Has the committee obtained
feedback on its performance
from those interacting with the
committee or relying on its work?

19

Has the committee evaluated
whether and how it is adding
value to the organisation?

20

Does the committee have an
action plan to improve any areas
of weakness?

Standards
This section is not part of the checklist provided by CIPFA, but has been included by
officers in order to assess the standards role of the committee which was constituted into
the audit and governance committee in May 2016.
Governance and standards
Yes
21
Has the committee advised
council on the monitoring,
adoption or revision of the
member code of conduct,
member and officer protocol and
communications protocol as
required?
22

Has the committee monitored
and advised on training for all
members, including co-opted and
parent governor representatives?

23

Has the committee dealt with any
standards complaints referred to
it (as required)?

24

Has the committee received
reports on unlawful expenditure
(as required)?
Has the committee established
sub-committees for misconduct
and the consideration of civic
awards?

25

26

Has the committee considered
withholding allowances from

No

Partly

103

individual members (elected and
co-opted for non-attendance at
meetings, elected members only
for failure to attend training)? (as
required)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021-22
COMMITTEE: AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE (OPEN AGENDA)
NOTE:
Original held in Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to Virginia Wynn-Jones,
Constitutional Team on 020 7525 7055 or virginia.wynn-jones@southwark.gov.uk
COPIES

COUNCILLORS
Councillor James McAsh (Chair)
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-chair)
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Michael Situ

1
By email
By email
By email
By email
1
By email

RESERVES
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Hamish McCallum

By email
By email
By email
By email
By email

OTHER COUNCILLORS
Councillor Rebecca Lury

By email

LAW AND DEMOCRACY
Norman Coombe
Doreen Forrester-Brown

By email
By email

FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE
Duncan Whitfield
Timothy Jones

By email
By email

BDO (Internal Auditors) – Greg Rubins

By email

GRANT THORNTON
Ciaran McLaughlin
Grant Thornton
110 Bishopsgate
London EC2N 4AY

By email

Matthew Dean
Grant Thornton
110 Bishopsgate
London EC2N 4AY

By email

Total Print Run:
COMMUNICATIONS
Louise Neilan

By email

CONSTITUTIONAL TEAM
Virginia Wynn-Jones

By email

2

INDEPENDENT PERSONS
Mr Musa Chunge
Ms Amrit Mangra

By email
By email

List Updated: January 2022

